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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The Members of
Transrail Lighting Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Transrail
Lighting Limited in which are incorporated the results for the year ended on that date
audited by the branch auditors of the Holding Company's branches located at
~ Afghanistan, Bangladesh, Benin, Bhutan, Ghana, Jordan, Kenya, Mozambique,
Nicaragua, Togo and Uganda and unaudited management accounts of ltaly branch
and which includes five Joint Operations referred to in Note 38 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries Transrail International FZE,
Transrail Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD, Transrail Structure America INC and
Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited and Adarsha Global Build Projects Private Limited
(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group”),
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive income,
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information prepared based on relevant records, (hereinafter
referred to as "Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act’) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021 and
consolidated profit {including other comprehensive income), the consolidated
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the
rovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have




NAYAN PARIKH & CO.

(REGISTERED)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

OFFICE NO. 9, 2*° FLOOR, JAIN CHAMBERS, 577, 5.V. ROAD, BANDRA (WEST), MUMBAI 400050, INDIA.
PHONE : {(91-22) 2640 0358, 2640 0359

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
preparation of the Other Information. The Other Information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include the Consolidated
Financial Statement and our Auditors Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information identified above and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed we are to conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. The Other Information has not been
made available to us till the date of this report and hence we are unable to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in terms of
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) that give a frue and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
india, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the
Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
m material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
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the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors
of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. |

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its
Jointly Controlled Entities.

Auditor’'s Responsibilites for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable. assurance about whether the Consolidated
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or efror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material ff,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern

~._pasis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a

.:f'hqateria! uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
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significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to meodify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

5 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statement and
other financial information of the Group and its joint ventures to express an
opinion on the consoclidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supetvision and performance of the audit of financial information of
such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditor. For the entities included in the statement which have
been audited by other auditor, such auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, make it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial
Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our
work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
Consolidated Financial Statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters
a. We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of four
subsidiaries whose financial statements / financial information reflect total assets
.. of Rs. 14.34 crores as at 31st March, 2021, total revenues of Rs. 0.35 crores and
“.net cash flows amounting to Rs. (1.66) crores for the year ended on that date, as
"'"?_'.-_éonsideréd in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements /
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financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and our report
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

b. We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary and three jointly
controlled entities, whose financial statements / financial information reflect total
assets of Rs. 151.68 crores as at 31st March, 2021, total revenues of Rs. 155.98
crores and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 4.80 crores for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and jointly
controlled entities and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the
Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and jointly controlled entities
is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management,
these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors
and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to
preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept
so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the
other auditors and the Management prepared financial statements of one
subsidiary and three jointly controlied entities

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with

the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read

with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company and none of the directors of the Group
companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financiai
reporting of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure A",

g.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors

during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer Note
44 to the consolidated financial statements.

ii. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as
required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts — Refer Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements in
respect of such items as it relates to the Group. .

ii. There are no amounts that are required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company incorporated in India.

For Nayan Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107023W

K N Padmanabhan
Partner

M. No. 036410
Mumbai, Dated : June 25, 2021
UDIN : 276364 [0 AAPAE FEEST-
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of Transrail Lighting
Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries and
jointly controlled entities, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
jointly controlled entities is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and -
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, Subsidiaries and Jointly
controlled entities, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”} and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such

-._controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to Financial
Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding
Company's internal financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to Financial Statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of Financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, including the possibility of coilusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.




NAYAN PARIKH & CO.

(REGISTERED)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

OFFICE NO. 9, 2%° FLOOR, JAIN CHAMBERS, 577, S.V. ROAD, BANDRA (WEST), MUMBAI 400050, INDIA.
PHONE : (91-22) 2640 0358, 2640 0359

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, and jointly controlled entities,
which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Qur aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, in so far as it relates to subsidiary and jointly controlled
entities, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies.

For Nayan Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 107023W

b

K N Padmanabhan
Partner

M. No. 036410
Mumbai, Dated: June 25, 2021

UDIN : 2103 64{0ARANES ¢85S T




Transrail Lighting Limited
CIN:U315060MH20038PLC1 79012

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(Al figures in INR Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
Ref 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 305.79 307.64
{b} Right-of-use Asset 2 11.18 8.12
{c) Capital work-in-progress 3 3.85 11.22
{d} Other intangible assets 4 0.46 0.87
{e} Goodwill on consolidation - 4.68
{f) Financial assets
{i} Investments 5 - -
{ii} Trade receivables 6 - -
{iil) Loans 7 47.63 34.59
{iv) Others 11 406 -
{g) Deferred tax assets {net) 15 - 0,04
{h} Other Non-current assets 8 26.72 32.51
359,69 399,67
{2} Current assets
{a) tnventories g 232.46 268.99
[b} Financial assets
{i} Investments 5 3.01 B
{il} Trade receivables 6 490,97 479.53
{iii} Cash and cash equivalents 10 (a) 89.10 22.60
{iv) Bank Balances other than {iii} above 10 (b} 38.44 58.10
{v} Loans 7 54.87 37.00
{vl) Others 11 2372 13.66
{c} Contract assets 12 662.22 647.11
{d) Other current assets 8 134.87 110.98
1,729.66 1,637.96
1,729.66 1,637.96
Total Assets 2,129.35 2,037.63
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Equity share capital 13 7.57 4.20
{b) Other equity 14 560.23 434,53
{c) Non controlling interest - 0.20
567.80 438.93
Liabllities
{1} Non-current liabilities
{a} Financial liabifities
{i) Borrowings 15 98.43 131.82
{il} Other financiat liabilities 16 49.91 46.53
{iii} Lease Liabilities 4.62 2.86
{b) Provisions 18 3.95 2.59
{c} Deferred tax Fabilities {net) 19 - -
{d) Other non-current liabilities 20 - -
156.91 183.80
{2} Current liabilities
[8) Financial liabilities
{i) Berrowings 21 283.48 214.57
{ii} Trade payables 22
Outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises 12.21 20.06
Outstanding dues other than micro & small enterprises 777.92 776.65
(iii) Other financial labilities 16 75.55 70.13
{iv) Lease Liabilities 6.29 3.43
{b} Contract fiabilities 17 18534 220.70
{c) Other current liabilities 20 26.57 56.21
{3} Provisions 18 31.97 38.14
{e} Current tax liabilities {nat) 23 5.31 15.01
1,404.64 1,414.80
Total Equity and Liabilities 212835 2,037.63
As per aur report of even date attached
For Nayan Parikh & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants - fi
FRMN 107023W
- g i
} D ¢ Bagde Randgep Narang Srikant-Chaturvedi
8% = 3§ i
N }\)l_ p&x() A Managing Director Dy. Managulé Birector

K. N. Padmanabhan f -
Partner ]

M.Neo, 36410

Mumbal, fJune 25, 2021

DIN No - 00122564

hief Financial Officer

¢
nupriya Garg
Company Secretary

DIN Na - 07269818

g L

e

DIN No - 00651133




Transrail Lighting Limited
CIN:U31506MH2008PLC179012
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All fipures in INR Crores unless otherwise stated)

Pariiculars Note 2020-21 2019-20
Ref
| Revenue from Operations 24 2,139.08 1,837.79
It Other Operating Revenue 25 33.34 42.83
lil  Other Income 26 28.48 2215
Total Revenue 2,200.90 1,902.77
IV Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 27 995.04 960.28
Changes in inventories of finished goods, wark-in- ‘ 28 60,30 -38.80
progress and stock-in-trade
Sub-contracting Expenses 29 364.57 263.26
Empioyee Benefit Expenses 30 134.41 128.04
Finance Cost 31 94,12 105.52
Depreciation & Amortisation 32 33.52 32.26
Other Expenses 33 387.19 331.04
Total Expenses 2,069.15 1,781.60
V  Profit before share of profit of Joint venture and Tax 131.75 12117
VI Share of profit / {loss) of Joint venture accounted by . {0.72) {0.96)
- using the equity method
Vil Profit Before Tax 121,03 120.21
VIl Tax Expense 35 32.85 18.22
1, Current tax 32.85 27.50
2. Deferred tax liability / (asset) - 0.08
3. Excess / (short) provision of tax - {9.36}
IX  Profit for the period from Continuing Operations 08.18 101.29

X Other Comprehensive Income

A Other comprehensive incomae to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent perlods
Exchange differences on translation of the financial 1.08 1.46
statements of foreign operations

1.08 1.46

B Net other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified to profit or loss In subsequent periods
Re-measurement gains/ {losses) on defined benefit 0.3t [1.29}
plans {net of tax}

0.31 {1.29}

Total Other Comprehensive Income 1,39 0.17
Xl Total Comprehensive Income for the period 99.57 102.16

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company ’ 99,75 101.90

Non Controlling Interest - Profit / {Loss) (1.57) 0.09

Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company 1.39 0.19

Non Centrofing Interest - Profit / (Loss} - {0.02)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company 101.13 102.09

Noen Controlling interest - Profit / {Loss) . {1.57} 0.07
Xlt  Earning Per Equity Share for Continuing Operations

(i} ParValue{Rs.) 36 10.00 10.00

(i} Basic [Rs.) 157.16 242.84

{iii) Diluted {Rs.) 157.16 242,84

As per our report of even date attached,
For Nayan Parikh & Co, For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN 107023W

Nl p N‘j_},____-. D C Bagde Randeep Nafang Srikant Chaturvedi

Managing Director Dy. N"ianag'lgg Director Director

K. M. Padmanabhan DIN No - 00122564 DiN No - 071269818 DIN No - 00651133

Partner
M.Nc. 36410 . . ¢
g;}:\,_ ] .xva/h,_.,-';w,._/"w—’ t
Rajedh Neelakantan Anupriya Garg
Mumbai, June 25, 2021 Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary




Transrail Lighting Limited
CIN: U31506MH2008PLC175012
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021
{ All figuras in INR Crores unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES T
Net Profit Before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 131.75 121.17
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amartisation 33.52 32.26

Interest income {2.64) (4.28)

Interest expenses 81.09 86.31

Aliowance for expected and lifetime credit loss . 10.09 5.70

Assets discarded - - 001

Profit on sale of property, plant & equipments {0.18) {2.70}

Loss on sale of property, plant & eguipments 0.29 0.10

Expense on employee stock option scheme 0.97 0.43

Bad debts written off 3.73 13.28

Deconsolidation of subsidiary 2,10

128.98 131.31

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Chonges 260.72 252.28

Trade receivables and contract assets {59.92) [144.58)

Inventories 35.21 (48.27)

Trade & Other Payables {56.59) 208.30

Other receivables {34.93} {2.82}

Loans and advances (23.77} (44.35)

{140.00) {31.72)

CASH GENERATED FROM THE OPERATIONS 120.72 220.56

Direct taxes paid (50.58} (32.22}
Net Cash from Operating Activities 70.15 188.34
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
payment for property, plant & equipments {27.16} ' (12.38)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipments 2.76 0.20
Movement in other Bank Balances 15.36 (41.84)
Purchase of investments (3.01} -
Proceeds from sale of investments - -
Interest received 2.64 4.28
Proceeds from sale of investment in subsidiary 0.01 {0.05}
Net Cash from investing Activities {9.40) (49.79)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (74.46) - {82.44)
Proceeds from promoter contributions - 1.66
Proceeds from Rights issue of Equity Shares 26.97 -
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 35.42 -
Repayment of long term borrowings {54.60} (76.82)
Proceeds from / {repayment of) short term borrowings 7261 11.82
Net Cash from Financing Actlvities 594 (145.78)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 66.68 [7.23)
Batance as at beginning 22.60 . 29.82
Add:- Addition/Remeval on acquisition/Disposal of subsidiary {0.18) 0.01
Balance as at closing 89,10 22.60
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 66.68 {7.23}
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
{i} Balances with banks 45,01 21.52
(1) Balance with Bank -Foreign Branches 25.24 ’ -
(i} Fixed Deposits with Banks 1.59 -
{iv} Cash on hand 1,72 0.85
{v) Chegues on Hand 15.51 ] 0.20
{vl) Other Bank Balance 0.03 _ 0.03

89.10 22,60

Note: Figure in brackets denote outflows

As per our report of even date attached.
For Nayan Parikh & Co, For and on hehalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants i

FRN 107023W

- A /L_j y D C Bagde Randeep Nar% Srikant Chaturvedi
Managing Director Dy. Managing Director  Director
K. N. Padmanabhan

DN No - 00122564 DIN No - 072?639818 DiN No - 00651133
Partner % i

M.No. 36410

Rajesh Neelakantan Anupriya Garg
Mumbai, June 25, 2021 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Transrail Lighting Limited
CIN: U31506MH2008PLC175012

Notes to the Consolidatad Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

Company Overview
Transrail Lighting Limited ("the Company" and "Transrail'} is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated

under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at
"Mumbai, India. R ' '

The Company incorporated in 2008, has been an integrated pole manufacturing company with state of art
manufacturing capabilities, vast experience and a rich pedigree. Consequent upon the transfer of Transmission and
Distribution {T&D) business of M/s. Gammon India Limited {"GIL") to the Company, effective January 1, 2016, the
Company is now an integrated transmission and distribution company.

The sald T&D undertaking has close to 35 years of experience of executing extra high voltage Transmission and
Distribution lines / rural electrification projects on turnkey basis. The company's scope of work includes design, testing,
manufacturing and supply of galvanized towers, conductors, and allied construction activities. The Company has built
in house capabilities in designing and testing of towers, with a tower manufacturing capacity of 110,000 TPA and a
state-of-the-art tower testing facility at Deoli, Wardha which can test towers up to 1200 kV. Over the years the Group
has executed marguee turnkey projects and cemented its position as a renowned T&D player in India. The Group is the
only player in India having manufacturing capabiities of towers, a Conductor Manufacturing Plant and a Mono Poles
Manufacturing plant and an ultra-modern Tower Testing Station. In recent years the company has also embarked into
the projects of rural electrification, railway electrification, erection of Sub-Stations civil construction.

The Company together with its subsidiaries (as detailed in note D) is herein after referred to as the "Group”.

The Financial Statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors in the meeting held on June 25,
2021.

New and amended Standards

i Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendments provide refief to Jessees from applying Ind AS 116 guidance on iease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not
to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this
election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way
it would account for the change under Ind AS 116, if the change were not a lease medification.

The amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. In case, a lessee
has not yet approved the financial statements for issue before the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be
applied for annual repoiting periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2019, This amendment had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.

i Amendments to ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendrments provide a new definition of material that states, “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financiai information about a specific
reporting entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
either individually or in cembination with other informatian;.it the pantext of the financial statements. A misstatement

of information is material if it could reasonably be fﬁécteaﬂ "’Eg?ﬁ‘l’rlgi%ﬁge decisions made by the

users, These
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amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of, nor is there expected to be any future impact
to the Group.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning. on or after the 1 April 2020. The -
amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. )

iil. Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109; Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number of reliefs,
which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. A hedging
relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing and/or amount of benchmark-based
cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument. These amendments have no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company as it does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for hedging relationships
to which the reliefs as per the amendments in Ind AS 109 are applied. These amendments are applicable for annual
periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. These amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

These Einancial Staternents are Consolidated Financial Statements and have been prepared in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS"} under the historical cost convention except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values, The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the
extent notified), read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Ruies, 2015 and Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule il to the
Companies Act, 2013 {ind AS compliant Schedule 111).

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. Therefore, the Financial Statements have been presented in
INR ("Rs.”) and all amounts have been rounded off to the nearest Crore (One crore equals ten million), except where
otherwise stated.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statement of the company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the company

1. Has power over the investee

2. Is exposed, or has right, to varlable returns from its involvernent with the investee and

3. Has the ability to use its power to affects its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicates that there are
~hange to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

The Financial statement of the company and its subsidiary companies have been consolidsted on line to line basis by
adding together assets, liabilities, income and expenses.




The following subsidiaries have been considered while preparing the consolidated financlal statement.

P % of ownership interest either directly or
Name of subsidiaries Country ‘?f through subsidiaries o
Incorporation
As on 31-Mar-

2021 As on 31-Mar-2020

Transrall International FZE UAE 100.00% 100.00%
Transrail Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD Malaysia 100.00% 100.00%
Transrail Structures America INC USA 100.00% 100.00%
Transrail Lighting Nigeria Limited Nigeria 100.00% 100.00%

. . N .
Adarsha Global Build Projects Pvt. Ltd. India } 75.10%

* The investment was sold and it ceased to be a subsidiary on March 30, 2021.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates,
judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of the accounting
policles and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities and the
liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period.
Accounting estimates could change from period to period and the actual results could differ from these estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management becomes aware of the changes in the circumstances
surrounding the estimates and assumptions. The changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the
period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Operating cycle for current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating
cycle of the Company as per the guidance set out in Schedule 11 to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities
of the Group covers the duration of the project / contract / service including the defect liability period, wherever
applicable, and extends upto the realization of receivables (including retention monies) within the credit period
normaily applicable to the respective project. Operating cycle for pure supply contracts and other businesses are
considered as twelve months,

Critical accounting estimates

The financial statements require management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosures of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuit in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The application of
accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use
of assumptions in the financial statements have been disclosed here under:

i. Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Consolidated financial statements.

il Taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unabsorbed tax iosses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be set-off. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits.

iif. Defined benefit plans {gratuity benefits) _
The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and the-present value of the gratuity obligation are determined

using actuarial valuations. An actuarial val %{dﬁﬁﬁfnﬁé&eﬁmaking various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. ThegeSiriclude the détermination of the discount rate, future salary

increases and mortality rates. Due to the§pmplexities invelied in the vaiuation and’ term nature, a
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defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries,

iv. non-current asset held for sale
Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. The
determination of fair value less costs to self includes use of management estimates and assumptions. The fair
value of the asset held for sale has been estimated using valuation technigues {mainly income and market
approach), which include unobservable inputs.

v, Revenue Recognition

The Group uses the percentage of completion method in accounting for its construction contracts. The use of
the percentage of completion method requires the Group to estimate the expenditure to be incurred on the
project till the completion of the project. The percentage of work completed is determined in the proportion
of the expenditure incurred on the project tifl each reporting date to total expected expenditure on the
project. Provision for estimated foreseeable losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded In the
period in which such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting
date.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue Recognition
The Group derives revenues primarily from Engineering, Procurement and Construction business.

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of contro! of promised products or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Revenue from Operations, where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and where there is no
uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is recognized as per the percentage-of-completion
method. The Group determines the percentage-of-completion on the basis of direct measurements of the value of the
goods or services transferred to the customer 10 date relative to the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract. When there Is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed
until such uncertainty is resolved.

Revenue from the sale of distinct manufactured / traded material is recognised upfront at the point in time when the
control over the material is transferred to the customer.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized in the accounting period when the service is rendered and the right
to receive the revenue is established.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as Contract assets while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as
contract liabilities (which can be referred as Advances from Customers).

'Advance payments received from customers for which no services are rendered are also presented under 'Advance
from Customers'

In arrangements for supply and erection contracts performed over a period of time, the Group has applied the
guidance in Ind AS 115, Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for each
distinct performance obligation. Although there may be separate contracts with customers for supply of parts and
erection of towers, it is accounted for as a single contract as they are bid and negotiated as a package with a single
commercial objective and the consideration for ogng;gggt[;g;t depends on the price and performance of the other
contract. The goods and services promised are a fsiﬁgi_,'éfﬂ é’r.fé’fgﬁance obligation.

N %

eme qu Profit and Loss.
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B.

Interest Income

[nterest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the grass carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider
the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Export Benefits -
Duty Drawback claims are recognized based on the entitlement under relevant scheme / laws,

Other Revenues
All other revenues are recognized on accrual basis,

Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE)
The Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any,

The Group depreciates the assets on straight line method in accordance with the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il of
the Act except for erection tools and tackles which are depreciated over the period of 2 and 5 years based on the
technical evaluation of the same. The management helieves that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect
fair approximation of the pericd over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of
the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is
included in the income statement when the asset is derecogniied.

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adiusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Non-current Assets held for sale

A Non-Current Asset is classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale rather
than through its continuing use, is available for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sale, it is highly probable that sale will take piace within next 1 year and sale will not be
abandoned.

Intangible assets

intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in
profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred, .
intangible assets consist of rights and licenses which are mortised over the useful life on a straight line basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a year of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. The contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asse! nd ihe Group has substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the asset and has right to direct the us pf the ldenkﬂed asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall
comprise of the amount of the initial measurement-of the lease llablfl y adjusted for any leas ayr_njeh}; made at or




before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured
at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-
measurement of the lease liability, The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the

commencement date over the shorter of lease term or usefu life of right-of-use asset.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses incremental borrowing

" rate.

£or short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition

The Group recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becommes a party to the contractual provision of
the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade
receivables which are recorded at transaction price. Fair value is the price that would be recejved to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a) financial instruments at mortised cost

b) financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

¢} financial instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or foss (FVTPL)

Financial Assets at amortized cost

A Einancial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose ohjective is to hold assets for collecting contractuat cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest {SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (FIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an mtegral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial Assets at FVTGCl

A financial asset is classified as at the FVTOCI if hoth of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instrumnents included within the FVTOC category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Falr value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss In the statement of profit & loss. On
de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCH is reclassified from the equity to
statement of profit & loss. Interest earned whiist holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using
the EIR method.




Financial Asset at FVTPL
Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as
at FVTPL.

De-recognition

A financial asset is derecognized when:

B The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

B The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition under Ind AS 109.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement.

Einancial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships

“as defined by Ind AS 109,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit & loss. Financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/
losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCL These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to the statement of profit & loss. However, the group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Group has
not designated any financial liability as at fair value through the statement of profit & loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance casts in the statement of profit and loss.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded d=rivatives and non-

derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, commodity price risk as cash flow hedges. Hedges of foreign exchange
risk and commodity price risk for highly probable forecast transactions are accounted for as cash flow hedges. Hedges
of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment are accounted for as fair value hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relatichship between the hedging instrument and

the hedged item, along with its risk management op,j%g;;;vw and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
PO A o™,

transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedg%jg‘j:xd”on an ngolng basis, the Group documents whether the




.. directly or indirectly observable

hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable
to the hedged risk. Note 42 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.

Fair value hedges .

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in profit or
loss, together with any changes in fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss,

Where the hedged item subsequently resuits in the recognition of a non-financial asset, both the deferred hedging
gains and losses and the deferred time value of the option contracts, if any, are included within the initial cost of the
asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss through
cost of material consumed.

Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain
or loss relating to the ineffective portion Is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to (effective
portion as described above) are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains and losses are transferred from
equity {but not as a reclassification adjustment) and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-
financial asset or nonfinancial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or Is sold, terminated, or when it no longer
qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the
Statemnent of Profit and Loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated
in equity is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial lfability is derecognized when the obligation under the Yiability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another liability from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liabillty are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized In the statement of profit or loss.

Fair Value Measurement

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the falr value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

Eor the purpose of falr value disclosures, the Group has deteJr;;uned classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the

nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabllity andfd ,}eiléw! aftr%e ’f@lr value hierarchy as explained above.
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Impairment

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group recognizes the loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for financial assets which are not
valued through the statement of profit and loss account.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or contract
revenue recelvables, The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment foss,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit
and loss.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life and goodwill are not amortized / depreciated and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets subject to amortization / depreciation are tested for impairment provided that an event or change
in clrcumstances indicates that thelr carrying amount might not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized in
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
difference between asset’s fair value less sale costs and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are aggregated at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash fiows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than Goodwill for which impairment losses have been recognized are tested at each balance
sheet date in the event that the loss has reversed. :

The Group, on an annual basis, tests Goodwill for impairment, and if any impairment indicators are identified tests
other non-financial assets, in accordance with the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
sensitivity analysis is performed on the most relevant variables included in the estimates, paying particular attention to
situations in which potential impairment indicators may be identified.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets.

General

The group recognizes a provision when it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
likely that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required to settle the obligation
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included [n the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are carried at the present value of forecast payments that are expected to be required to settle the
obligation, using a rate before taxes that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the
specific risks of the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Provision for Contractual Obligation

The group is exposed to shortages in the supply and rectification of erection services of the materials which generally
are identified during the course of the execution of the project. These shortages are due to various aspects like theft,
pilferage and other losses, The group therefore records the costs, net of any claims, at the time related revenues are
recorded in the statement of profit & loss.

The group estimates such costs based on histarical experience and estimates are reviewed on an annual basis for any
rnaterial changes in assumptions and likelihood of occurrence.

Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future e
obligation that is not recognized because it is not p‘robable“

ts beyond the control of the Group or a present
bflow, of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely ra 3 ; s



because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the entity.

Foreign Currencies

Transactions and Balances

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss with the
exception of the following: _

- Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity's net investment in a foreign
operation are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the Consolidated financial statements of the
reporting entity. The foreign operations are accounted in the Consolidated financial statements as a non-integral
operation.

- Exchange differences arising on monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's net
investment of a foreign operation are recognized in OCI until the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the
cumulative amount is reclassified to statement of profit & loss.

- Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCl.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value ina foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in
OC! or profit or loss are also recognized in OC! or profit or loss, respectively).

Share hased payments

The Group operates equity-settled share based remuneration plans for its employees.

For share settled share based payments, a liability is recognised for the services acquired, measured initially at the fair
value of the liability. All goods and services received in exchange for the grant of any share based payment are
measured at their fair values on the grant date. Grant date is the date when the Group and employees have shared an
understanding of terms and conditions on the arrangement.

Where employees are rewarded using share based payments, the fair value of employees services is determined
indirectly by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This fair value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of non-market vesting conditions All share based remuneration [s ultimately recognised as an
expense in profit or foss. If vesting periods or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated over the vesting
period, based on the best available estimate

of the number of share options expected to vest,

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds recelved, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are allocated
to share capital up to the nominal {or par) value of the shares issued with any excess being recorded as share
premium,

Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be refunded from or paid to Othe
taxation authorities. The tax rates and the tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the domicile country, Current income tax relating to items recognized
outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). The
management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and makes provisions wherever appropriate.

Deferred Tax . ‘

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on gmporary diffe eﬁges between the tax bases.of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at therreporting date.
EETEy .




‘profit and loss:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settied, based on tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recoghized in correlation to the
underlying transaction efther in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value,

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

B Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average.

B Work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads
based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost of direct material is determined on
weighted average. Work In Progress on construction contracts reflects value of material inputs and expenses incurred
on contracts Including profits recognized based on percentage completion method on estimated profits in evaluated
jobs.

B Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average.

B Consumable Stores and construction materials are valued and stated at lower of cost or net realizable value.

B Finished Goods are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Costs are determined on weighted
average method,

> Scrap are valued at net realizable value.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund, family pension fund and employee state insurance contribution is a
defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund,
family pension fund and employee state insurance contribution. The group recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to
the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date ‘exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund and / or creation of provision for unfunded portion of defined gratuity. '
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit pian is determined using the projected unit credit method.
Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through OClin the period in which they occur, Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or joss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit & loss on the earlier of:

B The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

B> The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit Yiability or asset. The Group
recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligati n expense in the Consolidated statement of




- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and
- Net interest expense or income

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable as a result of the group’s decision to terminate employment before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The group
recognizes these benefits when it has demonstrably undertaken to terminate current employees’ employment in
accordance with a formal detailed plan that cannot be withdrawn, or to provide severance indemnities as a result of an
offer. made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits that will not be paid within 12 months of the balance sheet
date are discounted to their present value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits in banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers related to goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course
of business. If the receivables are expected to be collected in a year or less {or in the operation cycle if longer), they are
classified as current assets, Otherwise, they are recorded as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables Is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due in accordance
with the original terms of the receivables. The existence of significant financial difficulties on the part of the debtor,
the probability that the debtor will become bankrupt or undertake a financial restructuring, and late payment or
default are considered to be indicators of the Impairment of a receivable. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is written down as the provision is applied and the loss is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. When a receivable is uncollectable, the provision for receivables is made in statement of
profit & loss. Subsequent recoveries of receivables written off are recognized in the statement of profit & loss for the
year in which the recovery takes place.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of the
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or past and future operating cash flows, and items of incomes and
expenses associated with investing and financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating and investing activities of
the group are segregated.

Operating Cycle

Assets and Habilities relating to long term projects/ ‘contracts are classified as current/non-current based on the
individual life cycle of the respective contract / project as the operating cycle. In case of pure supply contracts and
other businesses, the operating cycle is considered as twelve months.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or nroduction of qualifying assets, which-are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are added to the cost of those assets.
interest Income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their deployment is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Onerous Contracts

o

If the Group has a contract that is onerous, the present o@@@ﬁf{iﬂprthe contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for /{ is established, the Group-recognises any

AErous cShtﬁéé




impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract. An onerous contract is a contract under which
the unavoidable costs {i.e.,, the costs that the Group cannot avoid because i has the contract) of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unaveidable costs
under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and
any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract {i.e., both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to contract
activities).”

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Group by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding duﬁhg the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
shares and the weighted number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Transrail Lighting Limited
CIN: U31506MH2008PLC179012

Explanatory notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{ All figures in INR Crores unless otherwlse stated)

Financial Assets-Investments | At Cost)

Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Investment in Mutual Funds *

- Bank of Baroda Mutual Funds - 2.00 - -
1999500,605 Units {PY MIL) of Rs 10.0000 Each

- Aditya Birla Mutual Fund - 1.01 - -
160289,755 Units {PY NiL) of Rs 62,3839 Each -

Total - 3.01 - -
Disclosure:-

i} Investment Carried at Cost . - - .
ii} Investment Carried at Fair Value through Profit & loss - 3.01 - -
*Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments Rs 3.01 Crores (P.Y.Rs Nil}
*Market Value of Quoted Investments Rs 3.01 Crores (P.Y. Rs Nil)
*The units of mutuat fund of Rs. 3.01 Crores is marked as lien against the Cradit facility taken from Aditya Birla Finance Ltd.

Financial Assets -Trade Receivables

Particulars ) As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Considered good - 500.27 - 483,79
Credit impaired [Refer note & (a}] - 24.34 - 21.68
Less: - Provision for credit impaired - (24.34) - {21.68)
Less :- Allowance for Expected Credit Loss {Refer note & {b}] - {9.30) - (4.26)
‘Total - 450,97 - 479.53

Credit Impaired

The Group estimates impairment under the simplified approach. Accordingly, it does not track the changes in credit risk of trade receivables, The impairment amount
represents lifetime expected credit loss. in view thereof, the additional disclosures for changes in credit risk and credit impaired are not disclosed,

Expected Credit Loss

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable and Contract Assets, The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward- fvoking estimates, At every reporting date, the historicat observed
default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed. The Group estimates the provision matrix at the reporting date which is caleulated

cn overdue amounts,

Movement in the Credit Loss Allowance As at Mar-21

Cpening Balance 3988
Add : Created during the year 5.3z
Less ! Released during the year -
Closing Balance ) 9.30

Trade receivables includes amount of Rs 107.90 Crores (Previbus year Rs. 11.66 crores) due from related parties. Refer note 46

As at Mar-20

3.23
1.03

4.26

There are no trade receivables due from any director or any officer of the Group, either severally or jolntly with any other person, or from any flrms or private

companies In which any director is a partner, a director or a member

£ Ay y B o
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Financial Assets - Others

Partlculars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Security Deposits
Related Parties 28.76 - 15.00 -
Others 7.50 16.38 5.92 11.27
Loans and Advances
Related Partles
Considered good 11.37 32.06 13.67 25.73
Caonsidered doubtful 15.04 - 15.04 -
Less : Impairment provision {15.04) - {15.04) -
Others - - - -
Considered Good - 6.43 - -
Total a7.63 54.87 34.59 37.00
Details Related Partles As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Security Deposits
Gammeon Engineers & Contractors Pyt Ltd 28.76 - 15.00 -
Loans and Advances
Considered Good
Gammon FCEP JV - Nigeria 11,37 13.39 13.67 0.54
Consortium of Jyoti and gammon ("CG") - Joint Operation - 18.22 - 1411
Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt Ltd - - - 5.20
Gammon Indla Limited - - - 6.43
Rallsys & Transrail 3V - 0.45 - 0.50
11,37 32.06 13.67 26,78
Considered Doubtful
Gammon-FCEP JV-joint Operation 15.04 - 15.04 -
Other Assets
Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current ‘ Current Non Current Current
Capital Advances*® 0.43 - 2.34 -
{Unsecured, considered good}
Taxes Paid Net of Provisions 12,81 - 10.08 -
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
{Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid Expenses - 11.62 - 7.76
Advance to Suppliers: Considered Good** - 53.28 - 25,71
Advance to Suppliers: Considered doubtiul 0.18 3.66 0.18 320
Less : Impalrment Provision {018} [3.66) [0.18) {3.20)
Prepaid taxes (net of provisions) - - 1.63 -
Balances with Tax Authorities 13.48 68.18 18.43 51.43
Staff Advance for Expenses - 1.37 - 1.77
Prepaid upfront fees - - 0.01 0.00
Fair value changes to be adjusted in the cost of commodity hedged - - - 18.95
Others - 0.42 0.02 5.36
Total 26,72 134.87 32,51 110.98
* Capltal Advance include Rs NIL {PY Rs 1.03 Crore) given to related party. Refer note 46
** pdvance to supplier include 8s 22.60 Crares {PY Nil Crore) given to related party. Refer note 46
inventories
Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Raw material
a)In hand 111.45 101.24
b} I transit - 2.81
Work In Progress 9.84 23.09
Finished Goods - -
a}in hand 49.65 93.97
b} In transit 10.29 8.13
Consumable Stores & Spares 28.79 12.42
Bought Out Components 19.81 23.70
Others - Scrap 2.63 2.56
Bought cut goeds - in transit - 1.07
Total 232.46 268.99
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The disclosure of Inventories recognised as an expense in accordance with paragraph 36 of Ind AS 2 is as follows:

Particulars

As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Amount of inventories recognised as an expense 1,152.49 972,50
Total 1,152.49 972.80
Durlng the year inventory write down to Net Realisable Value amounting to Rs 1.58 Crores. {PY Nil}
Cash & Cash Equivalents
’ Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Balances with banks - 45.01 - 21.52
Balance with Bank -Foreign Branches - 25.24 - -
Fixed Deposits with Banks - 159 - -
Cash on hand - 1.72 - 0.85
Cheques on hand - 1551 - 0.20
Other Bank Balances - 0.03 - (.03
Total - 89.10 - - 22.60
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
. Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Earmarkad balances with bank
Balances held as margin money - 36.68 - 12.36
Bank Balances with more than three months maturity - - - 45,25
Other bank balances with repatriation restrictions - 1,76 - 0.49
Total - 38.44 - 58.10
Other Financlal Assets
Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Interest Receivable® - 2.88 - 2.96
insurance & Other Claim Receivable - 472 - 4.81
Receivable from Related Party {Refer note 46) - 0.48 - -
Mark to Market gain on foreign currency contract - 3.37 - -
Bank Deposits with Original Maturity more than 12 months - 4.06 8.25 . - -
Crop Compensation & Others - 4,02 - 5.89
Total 4.06 23.72 - 13.66
* |nterest receivable includes Rs. 1.87 Crore {PY Rs. 1.87 Crore) receivable from related party. Refer note 46
Contract Assets
Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current
a) Considered Good - £68.17 650.64
Credit impalired - 14.98 18.58
- 683.15 669.22
Less: - Provision for credit impaired - {14.98) (18.58)
- 668.17 650.64
Less :- Aliowance For Credit Loss - [Refer note 6{b}] - {5.55) {3.53}
Total 662.22 647.11
Movement in the Credit Loss Allowance As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Opening Balance 3.53 3.12
Add : Created during the year 242 0.41
Less : Released during the year - -
Closing Balance 5.95 3.53
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Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at iar-21 As at Mar-20
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
Face Value {in Rs.} ' Rs. 10 each Rs. 10 each
Class of Shares Equity Shares Equity Shares
Authorised Capital . 3,50,00,000 35.00 3,50,00,000 35.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital 75,69,480 7.57 42,008,000 4.20
Total 75,689,480 7.57 42,00,000 4.0
Disclosures:
i} Reconciliation of Shares
Parttculars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the period 42,00,000 420 42,00,000 4.20
Issued under Rights Issue (Refer note {d) below) 33,609,480 3.37 - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the period 75,69,480 157 42,00,000 4.20
a) As per the order of the National Company Law Tribunal dated March 30, 2017, the issued, paid-up and subscribed share capital of the Company of Rs. 31.00 Crores
comprising of 31,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each has been reduced to Rs. 0.20 Creres comprising of 200,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each/- upon the Scheme of
Arrangement becoming effective. The scheme of arrangement is effective from January 1, 2016, the appointed date stated in the scheme, in term of the provision of
Section 232{6) of the Companies Act, 2013.Thus the effects has been given in the financial for the year ended 31.03.2017. As provided in the scheme, the reduced
amount of Rs. 20.80 Crores, has been utilized for adjusting the debit balance in the profit and loss account of the Company and excess, if any shail be credited to the
capital reserve account of the Company. Accordingly, the existing issued, subscribed and paid up Share capital stands reduced to Rs. 0.20 Crores and an amount of Rs
11.67 Crores has been credited to the opaning surplus account and the balance amount of Rs. 19.13 Crores has been credited to capital reserve account.
During the year 2017-18, 10,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up were issued for consideration other than cash:
1} Pursuant to the Scheme of Asrangement and in accordance with the directions of the NCLT the company has issued 7,25,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each to Gammon
India Limited.
ity 2,75,000 equity shares on conversion of OFCE issuwred against Business Transfer Agreement
b} Pursuant to the conversion of the Optionally Convertible Debentures on 30th October 2017, 32,75,000 equity shares have been issued to M/s Ajanma Holdings Private
Limited and M/s Gammon India Limited and an amount of Rs 48.80 Crores has been credited to Securitles Premium account
¢) During the previouos year, the company had granted share options to eligible employees as per TLL Employee Stock Gptian Scheme, 2019, Refer Note 43
d) The Company has issued 33,69,480 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each on right basis {‘Rights Equity Shares’} to the Eligible £quity Shareholders at an issue price
of Rs. 80 per Rights Equity Share (including premium of Rs. 70 per Rights Equity Share). In accordance with the terms of issue, Rs. 20 i.e. 25% of the Issue Price per
Rights Equity Share (including a premiumn of Rs 17.50 per share), was received on application, Rs. 20 T.e. 25% of the Issue Price per Rights Equity Share (including a
premium of Rs 17.50 per share), was received on allotment. The Board had made First and final call of Rs. 40 per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of Rs. 35 per
share} on shareholders which has been receivad.
i} Details of Shareholding in excess of 5%
Name of Shareholder As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Number of Shares % Number of Shares %
-Ajanma Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 65,67,664 86.77% 32,83,832 78.15%
iii} Rights and obligations of shareholders
As per the records of the Company, including its register of sharehoiders / members and other declarations, if any, received from shareholders, the sharehalding as
shown in clause {ii) above represents legal as well as beneficial ownership of the shares.
iv) Terms [ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has anly cne class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- each. Each holder of equity share is entitled to ene vote per share. The distribution will
be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

in the event of liquidation of the Coampany, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets, if any, of the company after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propartion to the nurber of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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Other Equity

Particulars As at Mar-23 As at Mar-20
Retained Earnings (Surplus) 420,35 315.86
Security Premium 72,39 48.80
Capital Reserve 62.24 62.24
Debenture Redemption Reserve 0.19 4.61
Employee Stock Option Outstanding 1.40 043
Other Comprehensive Income 3.66 2.58
Total 560.23 434.53

Capital Reserve

As per the order of the Natipnal Company Law Tribunal dated March 30, 2017, the issued, paid-up and subscribed share capital of the Company of Rs. 31,00 crores
comprising of 31,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each has been reduced to Rs. 0.20 crores comprising of 200,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each/- upoa the Scheme of
Arrangement becoming effective. The scheme of arrangement is effective from January 1, 2016, the appointed date stated in the scheme, in term of the provision of
Section 232(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, As provided in the scheme, the reduced amount of Rs. 30.80 crores, has been utilized for adjusting the debit balance in the
profit and loss account of the Company and excess, if any shall be credited to the capital reserve account of the Company. Accordingly, the existing issued, subscribed
and paid up Share capital stands reduced to Rs. 0.20 crores and an amount of Rs 11.67 crores has been credited to the opening surplus account and the balance

amouni of Rs, 19.13 crores has been credited to capital reserve account.

Debenture Redemption Reserve

As part of Business Transfer Agreement and Scheme of Arrangement, the Company has agreed to redeem specified amount of non coavertible debentures Issued by
Gammon India Limited. The Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 require the Company to create a Debenture Redemption Reserve (DRR} out of

profits of the company avaifable for distribution of dividend. Refer Note 15

The Company has however not set aside or earmarked liquid assets of Rs 0.15 Crores being 15% of the amount of Debenture due for redemption as at March 2021 as

required by the Companles Act, 2013 .

The Company feets that considering the avaifable Cash and Bank Batances on hand it is confident it wifl be able to repay the Debentures on it's due dates.

Long Term Borrowings

Particulars

As at Mar-21
Non Current

Current Maturities

As at Mar-20

Non Current

Current Maturities

Non Convertible Debentures Secured

Placed with Banks and Financlal Institutions 0.79 1.60 1.77 0.58
Term Loans from Banks-Secured

Rupee Terin Loan (RTL} -1 8.96 £.55 15.58 3.22

Rupee Term Loan (RTL) -3 1.44 1.90 3.08 0.93

Funded Interest Term toan {FETL) 14.45 9,78 47.43 9.87

Working Capital Term Loan {WCTL) 36.37 27.97 68,39 14.14

Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme {ECLGS) 35.42 -

Term loan -Others - - 0.71 0.43
Term Loans Others-Unsecured

Term loan -Others - - 0.58 0.10
Loan from related party - - 1.28 -
Total 98.43 47.20 131.82 28.67

The company entered into a Business Transfer Agreement with Gammon India Limited (GIL) pursuant to which long term borrowings amousting to Rs 200.13 crores
and short term borrowings of Ks 29.99 crores of GiL were transferred to the Company, Further pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement and order of NCLT dated 30th
March 2017, loag term borrowing amounting to Rs 93.35 crores and short term borrowings amounting to Rs 181.75 crores were transferred io the Company upon
execution of novation agreement with lenders effective from January 1, 2016, The carve out of the barrowing pursuant to the BTA has been substantially completed
except few lenders. Carve out of Non Convertible Debentures, though agreed upan by GIL and the company, is yet to be approved and executed by the debenture

helders. The security for the borrowings assumed under the Scheme of Arrangement has been created.

Securities for Term Loans and NCD as per Novation agreement with the lenders :

Rupee Term Loan-1 [RTL1), Working Capital Term Loan {WCTL) and Funded interest Term Loan (FITL)

thereon -

1) 1st pari-passu charge en the entire Fixed Assets (movable and immovable), both present and future of the Company.

il) 2nd pari-passu chaige on the entire Current Assets, Loans and Advances, long term trade receivables and other assets pertaining to the Company

Non Convertible Debentures

i} First ranking pari passu security interest on entire fixed assets {movable and immavable}, both present and future of the company

Rupee Term Loan-3 { RTL3)

ii} 2nd pari-passu charge on the entire Fixed Assets {movable and immovable), both present and future of the Company.

Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme {ECLGS)
i) Pari passu 1st charge on assets created of the credit facilities being extended
i} Part passu 2nd Charge with the existing credit facilities In terms of cash flows (

and security.
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{d} The above mentioned term |eans carry an Interest rate ranging from 9.50% 10 12.25%

(e

e

i
iii
Iv

g

}
)
)

£CLGS foans carry an Interest rate ranging from 7.95 % to 8.40%

Pursuant to the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus{ Covid-19} pandemic, the Reserve Bank of India permitted, vide their circular dated 27 March 2020, a
mosatorium for the repayments of the principal amounts due of the term loans for a period of 3 months which was further extended fer a peried of 3 more months
upte 31st August 2020. The company vide their letters dated 30th March requested and opted for the moratorium granied by the lenders and therefore the
repayments that were due to be pald on 15th April 2020 and 15th July 2020 has been deferred. As per the guidelines the accumulated interest that was due to be paid
for the 6 months have been converted into loan and added to the pending instalments. Consequently the repayment schedules of the borrowings have also been
modified which were extended for a period of six months. The company therefore has reworked the current maturitles accordingly.

fepayment Terms
Type of Loan
RTL-1, RTL-3, WCTL

Repayment Schedule
Repayable in 11 quarterly unequal instalments commencing on 15 October 2020 and ending
on 15 April 2023,

NCD Repayable in 11 guarterly instalments of Rs.25.54 Lakhs commencing on 15th April 2020 and
ending on 15th October, 2022,

FITL Repayable In 21 quarterly unequal ballooning instalments commencing on 15 April 2018 and
ending on 15 Aprit 2023

FCLGS Loan Repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments commencing in April 2022 after an initial

moratorium of one year

Adarsha Global Build Projects Private Limited

The above term Loans are avatled borrowed towards the purchase of Plant and Machineries, Motors Cars and secured against the Hypothecation of such assets and
personal guarentee of directors of the company.

The above term loan is availed for Business Expansion purpose which carries effective interest rate @ 12.8% p.a.

The above Unsecured Loans are borrowed from Directors of the company and these are interest free unsecured loans.

The above Unsecured Loans are borrowed from outsiders other than Directors, relatives and Share holders of the company which are interest bearing.

Maturity profile of Term Loans and NCD

Period As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20

0- 1years 47.21 20.67
1-2Years 57.39 58.04
2-3years 23.35 59.15
3-4 years 8.36 i4.53
475 years 8.85 -
TOTAL 145.66 161.49
Reconciliation of Cash flows from financing activities

Current maturities
Particulars Non-current borrowings|{ Current borrowings of long term (Total
borrowings
Opening balance 131.82 214.57 29.67 376.06
Add:- Net addition / Removal on acquisition/disposal of subsidiary {3.11) {3.71) - {6.82)
Loan Taken during the year 35.42 72.61 - 108.03
Interest canverted to loan 6.44 - - 6.44
Repayment of Loan {24.93) - {29.67} {54.60)
Other changes (transfer within categories) {47.20} - 47.20 -
Closing balance 98.44 283,47 47.20 429,11
Other Financial Liabilitles
particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Liabifities under Court Scheme & BTA* 49.91 - 46.53 -
Sundry creditors for capital goods - 4.03 - 3.10
Current maturities of term leans - 47.21 - 29.67

interest accrued - 4.590 - 4.75
_ Payable on Fair value MTM en commaodity hedge - - - 9.70

Payable un Faiz value MTM on currency hedge - - ' - 1.04

Payable to staff - 19.41 - 21.87
Total 49.91 75.55 46.33 70.13

* Pursuant to the approval of Scheme of arrangement by NCLT and BTA agreement between Gammen India Limited & Transrail Lighting Limited {TLL} , there are
allocation of borrowings transferred to the company . The company and lenders also entered in to various agreement for creation of security , But there are certain
lenders | Insurance companies } who have not signed the novation agreements .Since the Insurance companies flave not recorded TLL as a borrower, the company is
unable to discharge thelr Habilities, including interest. In accordance with Legal advise sought in this matter, the Cornpany has disclased the aforesaid liability on
account of NCDs including interest thereon as Non Current Financial Liability. under Court Scheme & BTA pending settlernent of Novation issue and recognitions by the
holders of NCBs to the novation, Due to reason mentioned above samé s rint $idivn s default.
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B)

i)

Contract Liabilities

Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current
it Amount due to Customer for Contract works - 32,05 24,21
ii} Advance from Customer - 153.29 196.49
Total - 185.34 - " 220.70
Provisions
Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current.
Proviston for employee henefits
Provision for Gratuity - 1,00 0.12 2.28
Provision for Leave Encashment 3.95 0.28 2.47 0.25
Provision for Income Tax - 0.86 - 4.52
Others: .
Provision for Contractual Obligation*® - 22,12 - 17.31
Provision for expected loss on long term contyacis - 771 - 13.78
Total 3.95 31.87 2.59 38.14

*A provision is recognised for the expected amount of shortages on materlals 1o be suppiied to the client, rectification and replacement of services performed
pursuznt to the contract with the client . Assumption used to calaulate the provisions is based on past experience and management estimates.

Provision for Contractual Obligation

Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Opening 17.31 13.27
Provided during the period 5.38 5.19
Utitised / reversal during the pericd {057} {1.15}
Closing balance 22,12 17.31

The disclosures required under ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits” are given below:

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has an obligation to provide to the eligible employees defined benefit plans such as gratuity. The gratuity ptan provides for a iump-sum payment to
vested employces at retirement, death, while in employment or oa termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days of salary payable for each
compieted year of service or part thereof, Vesting occuss upon completion of 5 consecutive years of service, The measurement date used for determining retirement
henefit for gratuity is March 31.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving
rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to bulld up the final obligation,

The Company has defined benefit plans for gratuity which is funded through Life Insurance Corporation of India {LIC) group gratuity scheme.

These plans typically expose the Company ta the actuarial risks, investment risks, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and salary risk.

Actuarial Risk

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse Salary Growth Experlence: Salary hikes that arc higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in obligation at a rate that is kigher than
expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected.
Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the
assumned satary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than
expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

fnvestment Risk

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the falr value of instruments backing the liability.
In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result In wide fluctuations in the net Hability or the funded status if
there are significant chastges in the discount rate during the inter-valuation pariod. -

Liquidity Risk
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. if some of such employees resign/retire from the
Company there can be strain on the cash flows.




market Risk

Market risk is a coltective term far risks that are related to the changes and fuctuations of the financial markets, One actuarial assumption that has a material effect Is
the discount rate, The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate feads to decrease in defined benefit obligation of the plan benefits &
vice versa, This assumption depends on the vields on the corperate/government bonds and hence the valuation of lizbility is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at
the valuation date.

Legistative Risk

Legistative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabllities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the
Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companles to pay higher benefits to the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the defined benefit
obligations and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

As 5t Mar-21 - T AsatMar20
Particulars Gratuity : : Gratuity
Funded Funded

a) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit
Obligation

pefined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 7.90 5.67
Removal on disposal of subsidiary {0.14)

Obligation in respect of transferred employees - -
Current service caost 113 0.89
Interest cost - 0.52 0.44
Actuarial {gain) / loss (0.38} 1.17
Past employees service - 0.06
Benefits paid {0.68) 0.34)
Prior period charges - -
Defined benefit obligation at the year end 8.35 7.80
b} Reconciliation of opentng and closing balances of fair value of plan

assets*

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 551 5.47
Removal on disposal of subsidiary {0.01)

Expenses deducted from fund - -
Interest income .40 0.44
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in Interest income [0.08) {0.06)
Actuarial {gain} / loss - -
Employer contribution 2.20 -
Benefits paid {0.68}) (0.34}
Adjustment to the Opening Fund ST C - .
Fair value of pian assets at the year end 7.36 5.51
*100% planned assets are invested in policy of insurance

¢} Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations

Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 7.35 5.50
Present value of obligation as at the end of year {8.35) {7.90)
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet {1.00) {2.40)
d} Expenses recognized during the year {under the head “Employees

Benefit Expenses™)

Current service cost 1.13 0.87
Interest cost 0.12 0.05

Expenses deducted from fund - .
Past employees service - -
Prior Period Charges - : .
Actuarial {gain} / loss - .
Adjustment to the opening fund ’ - .
Met Cost 1.25 0.92
Other Comprehensive Income for the Period
Components of actuarial gainflosses on obligation

Due to change in financial assumptions - 0.71
Due to change In demographic assumption - {0.00)
Due to expertence adjustments {0.38) 0.47
Return on plaii assets excluding amount Including in Interest income - .0h 0.06

Actuarial {gain} / loss . - =
Net Cost {0.31} 1.23
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(i)

Actuarial assumptions

fortality Table

Discount rate (per annhum)
Withdrawal rates

As at Mar-21
Gratuity
Funded

{tiltimate)

6.85%

5% p.a. at younger
ages reducing to 1%

As at Mar-20
Gratuity
Funded

{Ultimate)

6.85%

5% p.a. at younger
ages reducing to 1%

p.a. at older ages p.a. at older ages

Rate of escalatien in salary {per annum) 6.00% 6.00%
The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considerad in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promation and other relevant factors including
supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

There s no minimum funding requirement for a gratuity plan in India and there is no compulsion on the part of the company fully or partially pre-fund the liabilities
under the plan. Since the liabilities are un funded there is no asset llability matching stratepy devised for the plan

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2021

Gratuity Plan As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20

Assumptions Discount rate Discount rate

Sensitive level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease (.5% increase 0.5% decrease

impact on defined benefit cbligation 791 8.87 7.47 8.38
Salary Growth Rate Salary Growth Rate

Sensitive level 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0,5% increase 0.5% decrease

impact on defined benefit obligation B.84 7.92 8.35 7.49

" Withdrawal rate Withdrawal rate
Sensitive level 10% Increase 10% decrease 10% increase 10% decrease
Impact on defined henefit obligation 8.38 8.35 7.92 7.89

The sensitivity analysls above has been determined based on method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obfigation as a resuit of reasonable changes in
key assumptions acecurring at the end of reporting period.

Maturity Profile of the defined benefit obligation

As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Within next 12 months 0.42 0.49
Betwesn 2-5 years 1.58 168
Between 6- 10 years 2.80 2.65
Total expected payments 5.20 4.82
The expected contribution for the next year is Rs.1 Crore {P.Y Rs. 1.13 crores).
Defined contyibution plans ‘
Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognized / charged off for the year are as under:-
2020-2021 2019-2020
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 3.35 3.28
Deferred Tax Assets / [Liabilities} - {(Net]
Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Current Current
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 29.12 30.02
Right to use assets 2.81 2.04
Other intangible assets 0.03} 0.02
Others - -
31.90 32.08
Deferred tax assets:
Provision for trade receivables and loans 14.65 12.08
Tax alluwances ufs 438 3.64 15,76
Tax Losses 1.27 -
Employee Benefits and others provision 12.34 4.28
31.90 32.12
Deferred Tax Assets {Net) - 0.04

Transrail Lighting Limited - The Company has accounted for Deferred Tax Asset on tax disallowances on a prudent basis only to the extent of Deferred Tax Liability as
there is reasonable probability of future taxable lncome to the extent of reversal of temporary tox differences
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Other Liabilities

Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Currant Non Current Current
Security deposits - ‘ 1.20 - 32,50
Payable for investment in subsidiary - 0.00 - 0.00
Duties and taxes - 21.20 - 22.73
Payable on account of share in loss of Joint operations - 1.68 - 0.08
Others - 2.49 -
Total - 26.57 - 56.21
Short Term Borrowings
Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current

_Secured Loans

Loans repayable on demand:

Cash Credit from Conscrilum Bankers - 93.97 - 66.20
Working Capital Demand Loan (WCDL) - 185.62 ' - 140,91
Purchase Financing Facility 3.89

Bank Overdraft - - - 3.45
Unsegured Loans

From Banks - Bill Discounting - - - 3.76
From Related Party - - - 0.21
Total ) - 283.48 - i 214.57

Current Financial Liabilities

i
i}

iif)

a)

b

—

o
e

Cash Credit facility & WCDL carries an interest rate ranging from 10.85% to 13.75%

Securities - Cash Credit/WDCL from Consortium Bankers :
a) 1st pari-passu charge on the entire Current Assets, Loans and Advances, Long Term Trade Receivables and other assets of the Company.

b} 2nd pari-passu charge over the entire Fixed Assets {immovable and movable) both present and future of the Company

The units of Mutuak Fund of Rs. 3.01 Crores is marked as lien against the Purchase Finance Facility taken from Aditya Birla Finance Ltd.

Trade Payables

Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20

Non Current Current Non Current Current
Trade Payables
- Micro and Small Enterprises - 12.21 - 40.06
- Others - 350,82 - 467.53
- Acceptance { Refer Note 22 ¢) - 387.10 - 309.12
Total - 790.13 - 796.71

Bues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information coliected by the menagement
under the MSME Act 2006.

MSME Disclosure

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under ; 2020-21 2019-20
MSME Act, 2006 X Amount Amount
Principal amount due 12.21 20,05
Interest due on above 0.14 0.50

Amount of Interest pald in terms of Sec 16 of the Micro, Small and - -
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

- Principal amount paid beyond appointed day 49.88 -
- Interest paid thereon - -
Amount of interest duc and payable for the period of delay . 1.45 1,55
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end 1.59 .92
pmount of further interest remaining due and payable in the 387 237

succeeding year

Trade payable include an amount of Rs. 387.10 Crores {P.Y. Rs. 309.12 Crores) being acceptances under Letter of credit opened by the lenders of the Company which is
secured by the underlying materials,
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a)

b}

<}

d)

Current Tax Liability

Particulars As at Mar-21 As at Mar-20
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Current Tax Liability {net of taxes paid) - 531 - 15.01
Total - 5.31 - 15.01
Revenue from Operations

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Sale of Products 250.85 343.34
Income From EPC Contracts 1,871.76 1,457.55
Sale of Services 16.47 36.90
Total ) 2,135.08 1,837.79

Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS - 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, of the Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

Method used to determine the contract revenue : Input Methed
Method used to determine the stage of completion of contract : Stage of completion is determined as a proportion of costs incurred upto the reporting date to
’ the total estimated cost to complete

i} Revenue disaggregation by type of Service is as follows:
Major Service Type 2020-21 2015-20
EPC Contract 1,871.76 1,457.55
Sale of Products / Services : 267.32 380.24
Total 2,139.08 1,837.7%

li} Revenue disaggregation by geographical regions is as follows: - 2020-21 2019-20
-Inindia 1,650.58 1,306.65
- Quiside India 448,50 531.14
Total 2,132.08 1,837.79

Hi}

Revenue disaggregation by Customer Type is as follows:

Customer Type 2020-21 : 2019-20

Government Companies*® 1,518.67 1,506.65
Non Government Companies 620.41 331.14
Total 2,139.08 1,837.79

* Government Companies include the Indian as well as foreign government companies

{iv) Atl contracts are fixed price contract and changes will result due to Force Majeure / arbitration claims, Price Varlation and Quantity Escalation.

Movement in Contract Balances

Particulars Opening Billing for the year Received durlng Closing

_ the year
March 2021 220.70 {329.30) 293.94 185.34
March 2020 178.73 {132.28) 174.25 220070

Parformance obligation and remaining performance obligation

Transrail Lighting Limited - The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied {or partially satisfied) parformance obligations is Rs 5,180 Crore. The
projects which substantially involve transmission and distribution projects have execution fife cycle of 18 to 30 months. The Civil EPC projects have an execudion life
cycle of 24 to 36 months. Qut of the balance unsatisfied contracts, the company expect to approximately execute 50% to 55% as revenue in the next 12 months
depending upon the progress on such contracts. The bafance unsatisfied performance obligation would be completed in the subsequent year,

Contract Price Reconciliation in respect of EPC Contraci;s 2020-21 1920
Contract Price 1,865.17 1,445.10
Add / Less : Adjustments - -
Escalations & other variations 6.59 12.45

Revenue Recognised 1,871.76 1,457.55
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Other Operating Revenue

Particulars

2020-21 2019-20

Sale of S5crap 2253 20.37
Job work 4.23 12.08
Export Incentive 6.07 10.25
Others 0.51 0.33
Total 33.34 42.83
Other Income

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Interest income 2.64 4,28
Sundry Credit Balances written back 13.09 5.08
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.18 2.70
Foreign exchange gain 8.55 7.64
Miscellaneous income 4.02 2,45
Total ] 28.48 22.15
Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Material Consumed (Factory)
Opening stack 65.44 71.74
Add :Purchases { net of discount } 810.58 8583.33
Less ; Closing stock {55.31) {65.44)
Material Consumed 820.71 864.63
Materials Consumed {Sites)
Opening stock 39.92 29.31
Add : Addition on acquisition of subsidiary - 1.05
Add :Purchases { net of discount } 191.06 105.20
Less : Removal on disposal of subsidiary {0.30} -
Less : Closing stock {56.35) {39.92)
Material Consumed 174.33 95.64
Total 955.04 960.27
Chér;gés in inventories of finished goods work-In-progress and stock-in-trade

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Inventory Adjustments - WIP
Work In progress at Opening 23.09 24.0%
Work In progress at Clasing {9.84) {23.09)
Inventory Adjustments - FG -
Stock at Commencemeant 104.66 &0.74
Less : Stack at Closing {62.57) {104.66)
Inventory Adjustments - Bought out Material -
Stock at Commencement 24.77 28.89
Less : Stock at Closing {19.81) (24.77)
Total 60,30 (38.80)
Sub-contracting Expenses

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Sub—contfacting Expenses 364.57 263.26
Total 364.57 263,26
Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Salaries, bonus, perguisites etc. 127.51 121.20
Contribution to employess welfare funds 3.76 3.84
Expense on employee stock aption scheme 0.97 0.43
Staff welfare expenses 2,17 2.57
Total 134.41 128.04
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Finance Cost

Particulars 2020-21 2019.20
Interest Expense 81.09 86.31
fnterest on lease Hability 1,16 0.76
interest on Direct and Indirect Tax o 3.27 8.42
Interest - Others . 4,61 4.96
Other Borrowing Cost 3.99 5,07
Total 94.12 105.52
Depreciétion & Amortisation
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Depreciation 28.76 - . 28.24
Amortisation 4.76 A4.02
Total 33.52 32,26
Other Expenges
Particulars ) 2020-21 2019-20
Consumption of stores and Spares 97.15 51.41
Bank & bank guarantee charges 43.60 40.62
Power & fuel 9.27 7.97
Rent* 18.95 16.85
Rates & taxes 8.25 16.37
Repairs & Maintenance - - -
-Building 0.30 058
-Machinery 2.57 1.29
-Others 1.74 1.83
Security expenses 3.02 6.55
Printing & postage . 1.77 2.04
Sundry debit balances written off . 0.74 0.48
Bad debts written off ' 373 13.28
Alfowance for expected and lifetime credit loss 10.09 5.70
Lass on disposal of subsidiary 0.54 -
Assets discarded - 0.01
Provision for expected contractual obligation 154 0.00
Curporate sorial responsibility expenditure 2,20 1.02
insurance . 10.76 5.97
Donation 0.03 0.12
Travelling expenses 5.66 11.36
Vehicte expenses 30.90 18.60
Project consultancy charges . 9.22 0.88
Freight & other expenses 82.26 99.08
Professional fees 15.78 13.81
Remuneration to Auditors
- Audit Fees 0.63 0.45
- Certification & Other's 0.06 0.03
Forelgn Branch Auditors Fees 0.31 0.13
Compoenent Auditors Fees 0.02 0.04
Luss on sale of property, plant and eguipment 0.29 0.10
Qther expenses 20.81 14.47
Total 387.19 331.04

* Includes impact of Ind AS 116 - Leases. Refer Note 2 (D) for accounting policy on Leases.

Corporate Suelal Responsibility Expenditure

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: Rs. 2,20 crores {PY Rs. 1.98 crores)*
Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year Rs 2,15 Crores

Amount spent by the Company during the year is as follows :

2020-21
Particulars Pald in cash/bank Yet to be paid in Total
cash/bank
Social causes including education and heaith care . 0.37 - 0.37
Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and 0.28 - 0.28
reconstruction activities
Total 0.65 - 0.65

CSR abligation is recalculated in accordance with provision of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Companies {Corporate Sociat Responsibility Policy) Rules
2014 as amended by Companies {Corporate Social Responsibility Policy} Amendment Rules 2021, As per the Rule of Corparate Social Responsilibitity Policy the profit of
foreign brarches are excluded for calculating CSR obligation.
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{d) Current year break up of unspent amount

Particulars Amount

OCpening Balances .

Amount deposited in Specified Fund of Sch Vil within 6 Months -

Amount required to be spent during the year 2.20
Amount spent during the year {0.65)
Closing Balance * 1.55

* The company has deposited the amount in the unspeat CSR Account post the financial year,

2019-20
Particulars Pald In cash/bank Yet to be paid in Total
cash/bank
Ensuring environmental sustainabiiity 0.12 : - .12
Rural Development 0.13 . 013
Sacial causes including education and health cara 0.57 - 0.57
Disaster management, inciuding relief, rehabiiitation and reconstruction activities 0,20 - 0.20
Total 1.02 - 1.02
Tax Expenses
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Reconciliation of statutory rate of tax and effective rate of tax:
1. Current tax-Domestic 32.85 27.50
2. Deferred tax liability / (asset} - .08
3. Excess provision of earlier years - [9.36}
Total 32,85 18.22
Accounting profit before income tax 13175 121.17
At India’s statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax on long term capital gain 23.30% 23.30%
Tax on profit 33.16 30.26
Effect of non deductibie expense 16.67 15.18
Effect of deductible expenses (19.18} {19.06}
Effect of set off of losses - {017}
Additional provisions on foreign branches 1.41 0.66
Additionai provislons on prudence 0.80 0.63
Current tax expense for the year 32.85 27.50
Significant Components of Deferred Tax for the year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars Opening Recognised in Profit Closing Balance
and Loss
Property, Plant and Equipment {30.01) [0.65) {29.35)
Right-of-use {2.04) 0.77 {2.81)
Other intangible assets (0.02} (0.02) 0.00
Provision for trade receivables and loans 12.00 (2.73) 14.73
Tax Disallowances u/s 43B i5.76 8.30 746
Short term capital loss - {1.27) 1.27
Others 4,35 {4.35) 8.70
0.04 0.04 -
Significant Components of Deferred Tax for the year ended March 31, 2020
Property, plant and equipment {42.02} {12.01) (30.01}
Right-of-use - 2.04 {2.09)
Other intangible assets {0.46) {0.44) (0.02)
§CDS adjustment 1.48 1.48 .
Provision for trade receivables and ioans 16.84 4.84 12,00
Tax disaflowances u/s 438 20.88 5.12 15,76
GCthers 3.39 {0.96) 4.35
0.11 0.07 0.04




36 Earning Per Share
Earnings Per Share (EPS} = Net Profit attributable to Shareholders / Weighted Number of Shares Outstanding

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
Mdrch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Net Profit attributable to the Equity Share holders {Rs in Crore} 98.18 101.99
QOutstanding Number of Equity Shares at the Beginning of the year 42,00,000 42,00,000
Share lssued during the year 33,69,480

ESOS Option outstanding at the end of the year - -
Closing number of shares at the end of year 75,69,480 42,00,000
Weighted Number of Shares during the period - Basic 62,47,074 42,00,000
Weighted Number of Shares during the period - Diluted 62,47,074 42,00,000
Earning Per Share — Basic (Rs.} 157.16 242.84
Earaing Per Share — Difuted (Rs.) 157,16 242.84

47 Disclosure in accordance with ind AS — 116 “Leases”, of the Compantes {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
During the previous year, the Group had adopted ind AS 116 'Leases’ with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces ind AS 17 — Leases and
related interpretation and guidance. The Group has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the lease liability are recognized based
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on incremental borrowing rate on the initial application date (01.04.2019) and same amount are recognized for Right-of-use assets.

The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS 136 has resulted in an increase in cash inflows
from operating activities and an increase in cash outfiows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

The foilowing is the summary of practical expedients
Elected on initial application:

Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets In similar economic environment with a similar end date.

Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with tess than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.
Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application

Applied the practical expedient by not reassessing whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the date of initial application. Instead applied the standards only to

contracts that were previously identified as leases under ind AS 17,

Usad hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract
contained options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has elected, by class of underlylag asset, not to separate non-lease components from lease components, and instead account for each jease component and

any associated non-lease components as a single lease compoenent.

For changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2020 Refer Note 2

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2021 Wiarch 31, 2020
Less than one year 6.29 3.97
One to five years 6.32 5.18
More than five years - -
Total 12.61 9,15
The following is the movement in lease liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning 7.99 -
Addition in lHability during the year 7.37 10.77
Interest on lease liabilities 1.00 0.92
Payment of lease liabilities (5.46} {3.70)
Closing balance 10.80 7.9%

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease lizhilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities

as and when they fall due,

loint Operations .
Particulars Ownership Interest Qwnership Interest
loint Operations 2020-21 2019-20
i) Consartiem of Jyoti Structures Ltd & Transrail Lighting Ltd (QJG) {Bhutan) 0% 50%
ii) Transrall Lighting Ltd - First Capital Energy & Power Ind Ltd JV (Nigeria) 30% 30%
iil) Railsys Engineering Pvt Ltd & Transrail Lighting Limited -JV 51% 51%
iv) Transrait Lighting Ltd & Gammon Engineers & Constructions Pvt 1td. A0% A0%

v) TLL Metcon Pravesh JV

60%
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Segment Reporting
‘The Company is primarily engaged in Engineering, Procurement and Construction business {EPC) refating to infrastructure inter alia relating to products, projects and
engineerings. Managing Director (Chief operating decision maker) menitors the operating results of its business units for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment as a whole, Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is maeasured consistently with profit or lass
in the financial statements. The CODM reviews the Company's performance on the analysis of the profit of the company on an entity level basis. The management is of
the opinion that the company continues to aperate under a single segment of Engineering and Projects and hence the Company has only one reportable segment
Engineering & Projects.

Entity level disclosure as reguired in IND AS 108

“The Company principally operates in the business of Engineering, Procurement and Construction business {EPC} refating to infrastructure and the major customers are
primarily State or Central utilitles of the country In which such projects are undertaken and private BOT operators in the business of laying and operating Transmission
Lines, During the permd there were Three (P.Y.Two) customers that contributed for more than 10% of the turnover Rs 1227.29 Crere (PY Rs 616.40 Crore)

Information about Geographical areas

Particulars Revenue Revenue
2020-21 2019-20
Domicite country 1,690.58 1,306.65
Foreign countries 448.50 531.14
Total 2,139.08 1,837.79

The revenues attributed 1o a specific country is basically determinad by the country from where the contract has been secured by the company.

Non Current Assets other than Financial Assets, Deferred Tax Assets, Ernployment Benefit Assets and Insurance Contract.

Particulars Assets Assets
2020-21 2018-20
Doricile country 305.73 360.56
Foreign countries 4.37 4.46
Total 310.10 365.02

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial Instruments that are (i) recognised and measured at fair value
and [ii} measured at amortized cost for which fair value are disclosed.

Level 1- Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assei or hablhty, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectiy (i.e. derived
from prices}

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or fiabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Recognised and measture at fair value
The Company has not recognised any of the outstanding financial instrument as on March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 at fair value,

Measure at amortized cost for which falr value is disclosed.
The Company has determined fair value of all its financial instruments measured at amortized cost by using Level 3 inputs.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
Long-term fixed-rate of borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates.
The foltowing table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Date of Valuation Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable unobservable
[Level 1) inputs inputs {Level 3}
{Level 2)

Assets measured at fair value:
Mutual funds - Growth plan 31.03.2021 3.01 - -
Forward contracts 31.03.2021 - 3.37 -

There have been no transfars between Levet 1 and Level 2 during the period.
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) The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Financial assets :

Loans and advances 102.50 71,60 102.50 71.60
. Trade receivables 480.97 479.53 490.97 479,53

Cash and bank balances 127.54 80.70 127.54 80.70

Others 27.78 13.66 27.78 13.66

Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings 98.43 131.82 98.43 131.82 -

Short term borrowings 283.48 214,57 283.48 214,57

Trade payahles 790,13 786,71 -.790.13 796.71

Others 136.38 122.96 136.38 122.96

The management assessed that fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade recelvables, trade payables, book overdrafts and other current financial assets and
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and labilities is
inciuced at the amount at which the instrurnent could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale,

Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other reserves attributable to the equity share hoiders of the
company. The primary cbjective of the Company’s capltal management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s policy is 1o keep the gearing ratio between 20%
and 40%. The Company Includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents,

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Long Term Borrowings 03.43 131.82
Short Term Borrowings 283.48 214.57
Current Maturities for Long term Borrowing 47.20 20.67
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents 89.10 22.60
Net debt 340.01 353.46
Total capital 567.80 438.93
Gearing Ratio 0.60 0.81

in order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately
call toans and borrowings. The Company is not subjected to any financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing.

No changes were made in the objectives, policles or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

Financlal instruments

A Categories of financial Instruments

As at March 31,2021
Particulars FVTPL FVTOC Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Non current investments - - -
Current Investments 3.01
Trade receivables - - 490.97
Cash and bank balances - - 89.10
Loans - - 54,87
Others financial assets 3.37 - 23.72
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 381,91
Trade payables - - 790.13
Other financial liabilities - - 75.55
As at March 31,2020
Particulars FVTPL 100 Arnortised Cost
Financial Assets
Non current Investments - - -
Trade receivables - - 479,53
Cash and bank balances - - 22.60
Loans - - 37.00
QOthers financial assets - - 13.66
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings - - 346.40
Trade payables - - 796.71
Other financial liabilitles 10.74 - 59.39




43 Financial risk management objectives and policies
a) Financlal risk management objectives
1 The Company’s principal financial iabiiities comprises of loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financiaj labifities is to
finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivabies, and cash and cash equivalents that derive
directly from its operations.

2 The Company Is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s
senior management Is supported by an appropriate financial risk governance framewerk for the Company which provides assurance to the Company’s senior
management that the Company’s flnancial risk activities are gaverned by appropriate policies and procedures and that financlal risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. It is the Company's policy that ne trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be
undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and lays down policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

3 Derivative financial instruments
The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as fareign currency forward contracts and commodity future contracts to mitlgate the risk of changes in
exchange rates on foreign currency exposures and changes in price of commadities. The counter party for these contracts Is generally a-multinational bank; financial
institution or exchange. These derivative financiaf instruments are valued based on quoted prices for similar assets and labilities in active markets or inpﬁts that are
directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace, Mark to Market gain or loss on derivative instruments is part of other current financial assets or liabifities.

by Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk namely interest rate risk, currency risk and commodity risk. Financlal instruments affected by market risk include receivabies, payables, net investment in
foreign operations, loans and borrowings and deposits.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections on the financiat assets and financial labilities relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

« The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt as at March 31, 2021.

-« The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-
financial assets and liabilities

+ The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

¢) interest rate risk
[nterest rate risk is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Corpany’s
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates refates primarily to the Company’s long-term and shiort term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Presently the borrowlngs of the company are subject to a floating interest regime at base rates specified in the respective financing agreements, Which is subject to
variation in rate of Interest in the market . However going forward the Company would be maving to the MCLR based regime which would be variable upen the
Marginal Cost of lending of the lenders. Considering the present market scenario the Company’s policy is to maximise the borrowings at MCLR based varlable interest
rate.

Interest rate sensitivity
The foliowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other
variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate bozrowings, as follows:

Effect on profit before tax
Variation in interest {basis points} 31-03-2021 31-03-2020
increase by 50 Basis points {2.15) (2.25}
Decrease by 50 Basis points 2.15 2.25

The assumed movernent in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently ohservabie market environment.




d} Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s
exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primartly to the Company’s operating activitles (when revenue or expense and monetary assets &

liabilities is denominated in a foreign currency) .

Foreign Currency Exposure unhedged as at 315t March 2021 is Rs, 350.50 crores { Previous Year 383.37 crores ) for Trade and other Receivables and Rs 215.32 crores{

Previous Year Rs. 234.46 crores) for Trade and other Payables.

For Un-hedged Forelgn Currency Exposures:

2020-21 2019-20.
Particulars Foreign Currency in Amount in INR Foretgn Currency in Amount in INR
000" 000"
Trade and other receivables

usp 24,995,387 183.73 21,299.50 160.57
EUR 1,456.12 12.54 1,018.97 8.46
GBP 551 0.06 15,73 0.18
AED s - 1,109,93 2.26
MYR - - 23.07 0.04
BTN [NU) 3,07,327.13 30.73 5,01,973.67 50.20
CAD 1,952.56 11.59 1,992.56 10.51
KSH 5,18,198.97 34.42 7,62,054.11 53.75
NGN - - 1,396.00 0.03
AFS - - 6,50,906.43 63.19
ECFA 5,63,602.26 7.38 5,22,539.73 6.55
BDT 2,75,841.37 23.40 35,384.67 3.04
GHS 1,272.81 1.61 5,884.89 7.56
10D 469.58 4.85 960.82 10,13
AFA 1,31,837.16 12.34
MZN 1,13,917.47 12.06 29,241.34 3.24
UGX 20,53,349.15 4,08
QAR 1,785.68 3.56 1,785.68 3.64
SEK 5,628.23 3.08
NIO 878.06 0.18

- 350.61 383.35

For Un-hedged Foreign Currency Exposures:
2020-21 2019-20

Particulars

Foraeign Currency in

Amount in INR

Foreign Currency in

Amount in INR

Trade and other payables

UsD

EUR

CAD

BTN (NU)
KSH

AFS

ECFA
BDT

GHS

JOD

AFA

uGx

NIO

SEK
MZN

18,214.65 127.62
744.33 5.73
869.10 5.05

57,543.02 575

4,64,070.61 30.82

66,361.26 0.87

1,85,669.65 15.75
95137 1.20
191.18 1.97

1,39,585.40 13.07

8,12,802,39 162

78.49 0.02
1,445,08 1.02
45,544.94 4,82
- 215.31

16,719.55
712.86
869,10

1,00,384,36

6,10,555.41
3,72,802.44
1,61,570.98
26,823.13
1,937.54
385.06

4,676.09
45,530.18

116.00
5.33
4.58

10.04
43.07
36.19
2.03
2.31
2.49
4.06

3.32
5.05
234.47




e}

f]

g

The company has designated following forward contract as a fair value hedge which are outstanding as under :

i Amount In Foreign Amount
Particulars No. of Cont C

arti o. of Contracts urrency Type Currency (in 000"} In Crore
As at March 31, 2021
Sell USD/iNR 3 Uso 6,000.00 46.84
As at March 31, 2020
Sell USD/INR 3 usb &,000.00 46.84
Buy SEX/INR 1 SEK 25,000.00 19.05

Forelgn currency sensitivity

The foliowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USO and EUR exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on

the Group’s profit before tax Is due to changes in the fair value of revenue or expense and monetary assets & liabilities. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency
changes for all other currencies Is not material.

Variation in exchange rate (%} Effect on profit before tax
31-03-2021 31-03-2020

Usp

increase by 5% 2.81 6.19
Decrease by 5% (2.81) {6.19)
EUR '

Increase by 5% 0.34 0.07
Decrease hy 5% {0.34} {0.07}

Commodity price risk
The Group is affected by the price volatility of the major commaoditles. The Group’s operating activities require the ongoing purchase and manufacture of Tower,
conductors and poles and therefore require a continuous supply of Steel, Aluminium and Zinc. it may he observed that all the three metals have significant volatitity in
the prices during the year, However in case of steel which is the major item, there is no marketplace to manage the price risk. The Group holds derivative financiat
instruments such as commedity future contract to mitigate the risk of changes In Aluminium prices.

Further substantial part of our revenues during the year were covered by escalation clauses which addresses the price volatility to a large extent.

Due to the significantiy increased volatility of the price of the steel, Aluminium and Zing, during the year the Group entered Into various purchase contracts for Steel,
Alumintum and Zinc at specific rates to manage the risk of the costs, The prices in these purchase contracts are linked to market rates.
The Group's Board of Directors has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding commedity price risk and its mitigation.

The company has designated following commodity forward contract which are outstanding as under :

. Quantity hedged {In Amount in USD {In Amount
Particulars i
MT) 000"} In Crore
As at March 31, 2021
Aluminiam - - -
As at March 31, 2020
Aluminium 11,450 20,034 151.04

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet Its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, fzading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed

to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables} and fram its financing activities, inciuding deposits with banks and financial institutions and other
flnancial instruments.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Credit quality of a customer Is assessed based on the ability of the custormer to hencur his commitments. The credit quality is also assessed on factors like state/central
sponsored undertaking, flnandial strength of the customer, assurance of payments like LC or Guarantees etc. Cutstanding customer receivables are regularly
monitored and any shipmeats to major customers are generally covered by fetters of credit or other forms of credit insurance. As at 31 March 2019, the Group has two
customers that owed the Gruup more than 10% of all the receivables outstanding. Retention is considered as part of receivable which is payable on completion of the
project and achieving the completion milestones. In certain contracts the retention would be realised on submission of a Bank guarantee, which Is submitted as per the
terms of the contract with customer.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are consolidated
into an homogenous class and assessed for tmpairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
financial assets disclosed in Note 40, The Group does not hold collateral as security. The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as
low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely indepandent markets.
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tn addition, the Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial guarantees given by the Group on behalf of joint operation (net of group share).These financial
guarantees have been issued to the banks on behalf of the joint operations .Based on the expectations at the end of reporting period ,Group considers the likelihood
of the any claim under such guarantee is remote.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from bafances with banks and financial institutiens js managed by the Group’s treasury department in accordance with the Group's policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limlts are reviewed by the
Group’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate
financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, debentures and other instruments. During the year ending March 2021 no term lean has matured {31 March
2020 Rs. Nil, } based on the repayment schedule specified in the financing agreements with the lenders.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial Habilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Year ended 31 March, 2021 Borrowings ‘Trade and other
payables
Cn demand 93.97 253.26
Less than 3 months 12.46 412.65
310 12 months 34,74 124.42
1to 5 years 08.45 -
> 5 years -
239.52 790,33
Year ended 31 March, 2020 Borrowings Trade and other
payables
On demand - 487.59
Less than 3 months 0.51 191.03
3to 12 months 29.16 118.09
1to5years 129.25 -
> 5 years -
158.92 796.71

The disclosed financial instruments in the above tabie are the gross undiscounted cash flows. However, those amounts may be settled gross or net.

Extessive visk concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be simifarly affected by changes in ecenomic, political or other conditions. Cencentrations
indicate the refative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developments affecting a particutar industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Group's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfolio
which includes assessing of geopolitical factors, country risk assessment and other factors to have diverse customer relationships. identified concentrations of credit
risks are cantrolled and managed accordingly.

Collateral

As mentioned In note no 15 & 21 the assets of the Group are hypothecated/charged to the lenders for the borrowings and the non-fund based facilities provided by
them. There are no collaterals provided by the shareholders or any other person.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

i

B
1}

Particulars 2020-21 20315-20
Contingent Liabilittes )
Bank guarantees issued by the bankers . 207.32 181.25
Indirect tax matters for which group has preferred appeal 98.25 121,97
Others 0.69 051
Commitments ‘
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital 25.84 8.35

Account and not provided for in accounts.
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Employees Stock Option Scheme

it The Group had implemented Employee stock option scheme as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on 26th February 2019. During the year,
the group came up with the corporate action vide rights issue of equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 at the issue price of Rs. 80/- per share, Thus on account of corporate
action vide Rights Issue carried out by the group after the grant of the options, the meeting of nomination and remuneration committee of the board was held on 15th

December, 2020 and approved following modification in the ESOP Sche

me,

a) The exercise price of the options was adjusted to Rs. 498/- {Rs. 418/- Plus 80 Rs./-} per option and
b} The Option Holder shall have the right to subscribe/apply for two equity shares of the company against each option held

Scheme detalls Grant Date

Ne. of options Granted

Original exercise price
per option

Modified exercise
price as per
corporate action

Vesting period

ESOP Scheme -2019 July ,29 2019

60,000

* Rs. 418/~ for 60,000
options

Rs. 498/- for 60,000
options

1 Year

The options are granted at an exercise price, which is fair vaiue at the time of such grants. Each option entitles the holder to exercise the right to apply for and seek

allotment of two equity shares of Rs. 10/- each,

The Group has carried out fresh assessment of the fair valuation of the option before and after the corporate action te determine additional cost, if any , to be
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as ESOP Compensation Cost.
The falr valuation carried as per Black Scholes method by an independent vaiuer has determined the additionat charge of Rs 9.50/- per option cutstanding. Since the
vesting is completed this difference in fair value chaanges has been charged to the statement of profit and loss immediately as required by INDAS 102. The Fair value

changes and disclosures are detailed hereinafter,

i} Stock optien activity under the schemels) for the year ended 31st March, 2021 is set out below:

Weighted
- - Weighted average cighied average
Particulars No. of options exercise price {Rs} per Remaining
i norep P P contractual life
option
{years)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 60,000 Rs. 418 -
Granied during the year - - 1:33 years
Forfeited/cancelled during the year - - -
Exercised during the year - - -
Cusstanding at the end of the year 60,060 Rs. 498* 1.33 years
Exercisable at the end of the year 60,000 Rs. A98* -
* Modified as per corporate action.
Stack option activity under the schemeis) for the year ended 31st March, 2020 is set out below:
Weai
Weighted average erghted'a}'erage
Particulars No. of options exercise price {Rs) per Remaining
' N contractual life
option
{years)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 60,000 Rs. 418 -
Granted during the year - - 2.33 years
Forfeited/cancelled during the year - - -
Exarcised during the year - - _
Outstanding at the end of the year 60,000 Rs. 418 2.33 years
Exercisabie at the end of the year - - -

iiiy The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing fair value considering the following inputs:

Iv

—

Particulars ESOP Sctheme -2019

nModification due to

- Original

corporate action
Expected volatility 36.37% 59.17%
Risk-free interest rate 6.46% 6.04%
Weighted average share price (Rs.) 418 498
Exercise price {Rs.) 418 498
Expected life of options granied in years 2 2
Weighted average fair value of options (Rs.) 107.47 116.97

The effect of share based payment transactions on the entity’s profit or loss for the period is presented below:

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Share based payment expense 0.97 0.43
Balance in Employee Stock Option Outstanding 1.40 043
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Disclosure as required by Accounting Standard ~ IND AS 24 - "Related Party Disclosures" are given in Annexure - 1

Disclosure related to interest in other entities as per IND AS 112
Detalls are given in Annexure -1

Disclosure as reqeired under schedule Ul of the Companies Act, 2013
- Dretails are given in Annexure -l

During the year, the Company has sold it's investment in Adarsha Global Build Projects Private Limited, therefore it has ceased to be subsidiary of the Company

w.e.f March 30, 2021,

Disclosure as required by Accounting Standard — IND AS 112

Particulars Amount
Non Current assets
Property Plant and Equipment 2.48
Others Financial assets 0.10
Others Non current assets 1.43
Deferred tax Assets (Net) 0.04
Total Non Current assets 4.05
Current assets
Inventory 0.30
Cash and Cash Equivalent 0.67
Other Bank Balance 0.26
Trade Receivable 11.64
Others Financial assets -
Cthers Current assests 3.28
Totai Current assets 16.15
Non-Current Liabilites
Borrowings 2.33
Provisions 0.13
Other Financial liabilitles -
Other Non Current llabllity -
Total Non Current Liabilites 2.47
Current Liabilities
Bosrowings 5.06
Trade payables 8.36
Provisions -
Other Financial liabilities 116
Other current liability 8.65
Total Current Liabilites 23,24
Gain / {Loss) on de-consolidation
Met Assets/f{Liabilities) Decensclidated [5.51)
Consideration Received [0.03)
Goodwill 4,68
Non Congroling Interest 1.37
0.54
Net Assets/{Liabilities} Deconsolidated attributable to Parent Company
Net Profit / (Loss) on de-consolidation [0.54)
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tmpact of Covid 19 :

The management has evatuated the impact arising out of Covid-19 and considering the fact that the company has a strong order book and L1 position the company
continues to have visibility of revenue over the next 18 to 24 menths. The Company does not expect any significant risk associated with recoverability of asset and
maeeting its liabilities. Therefore, there is no material impact on the carrying value of the current assets. Considering the nature of COVID-19, the Company will continue
to closely monitor any materiat changes to future economic conditions. In carrying out the assessment of the future revenues and the future Lost to complete the

impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has been considered.

In the opinion of the Management, Current Assets, and Non-Current Assets other than Property, Plant and Equipment have a value on realization in the ordinary

course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet,

‘the figures for the previous year have been regrouped and restated to make them comparable with the figures of the current year.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Nayan Parikh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 107023wW

b d, )

K. - Padmanabhan
Partner
M.No. 36410

5y

ML AL

Murnbal, June 25, 2021

) bCBagde ’

For and on behatf of Board 6f Directors

Managing Director
B No - 00122564

Rajesh Neelakantan
Chief Financial Officer

Ran&%ep?\l;— g
Dv.lV'i;anagi{ ‘Director

DIN No - 07269818

&
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B

Anupriya Gairg
Company Secretary

Srika ptﬁ
Director

fatiarvedi

DIN No - 00651133




Annexure - | -Dlsclosure as required by Accounting Standard - IND AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures” {Refer Note 46)

Relationships:
Holding Company

a) Ajanma Holdings Private Limited - Holding company

Joint Operation

a) Transrail Jyoti Structures- Bhutan

b} Transrail - First Capital Energy & Power Ind Ltd (FCEP) JV- {Nigeria)
¢} Transrail - SAE Consartium - Tanzapia

d} Transrail-SAE Consortium -Mozamblique

&) Transrail - SAE Consortium - Benin

£} Rallsys Engineers Pvi. Ltd. - Transraif lighting 1td. JV-(REPL-TLL 1V}
g) Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt Ltd - TLL 3V {GECPL - TLL V)
h) TLL Metcon Pravesh §v

Related Party Transaction with :-

Entities where controls / significant influence by KMP's/Directors

and their relatives exist/Fellow Associate

a) Latindia
b) Chaturvedi SK & Fellows

¢} Gammon Engineers and Contractors Pvt. Ltd. {GECPL) (Upto-30.03.2021)

dj Adarsha Multispeciality Hospital
e} Adarsha Specialty Chemicals Pvt Ltd.

Key Management Personnel and their relatives:
1 Mr. D C Bagde {Managing Director)

2 Mr. Randeep Narang {Chief Executive Officer & Deputy Managing Director)

- Appointed w.e.f. 15-Dec-2020
Mr. Srikant Chaturvedi (Director}
Mr. Sal Mohan { Independent Director)

3

a

5 Mr, Deepak Bhojwani (Independent Director) -Appointed w.e.f. 14-Sept-2018

6 Mr. Jeevan Lal Nagori (Director) - Ceased to be an Executive Director w.e.f,
30-0ct-2020 and appointed as a Non-Executive Director w.e.f, 81-Nov-2020

7 Ms, Ravita Punwani [Director) - Apppointed w.e.f. 15-Dec-2020

8 Mr. Sanjay Verma (Director} - Apppointed w.e.f. 15-Dec-2020

S M. Prakasha 5 Gejjagondahalli {Director)

10 Mr. Chandrashekar S Gejjagondanzhalli {Director)
11 Mir. Omkarmurthy S Gejjagondanahalli {Director)

Entities where controls

Key Managément / significant influence by

Transactions Holding Co, KMP's and their Joint Operations Total
Personnel .
relatives exist/Fellow
Associate

Sale of products - 144.42 147.65 292,07

. - (2917} {29.17)
- CIT- Bhutan- Sales of Towers - - - -

- - {1.32) {1.32}
-GECPL-TLAV - - 126,52 126.52
~ TEL-FCEP JV-Nigeria - - 18.94 18.94

- - (14.14} {14.14)
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvi. Ltd. - 144.42 - 144.42

- {18.70) - {18.70)
- Railsys Engineering Pvt. Ltd. -TLL JV (REPL-TLL JV) - - 2.18 2.18

- - {13.71) {13.71)
Purchase of Goods / Services - 62.51 17.36 79.87

- {3.63) - {3.63)
- Chaturvedi SK & Fellows - 0.40 - 0.40

; {0.40) - (0.40}
- TLL-FCEP JV-Nigeria - - 17.36 17.36
- Latindia - - - -

- (0.02) - (0.02)
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd. B 62.11 - 62.11

- {3.20} - (3.20)
Interest Expense - - i.81 1.88
-Ajanma Holdings Private Limited - - - 0,07
- GECPL-TLL-JV - - 1.81 1.81
Funds Received / adjustments for above - - - -

- - {9.88} {9.88)
-Fransrail Jyoti Structures- Bhutan - - - -

- - {9.88} {9.88)

-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd.




Entities where controls
/ significant influence by
Transactions Holding Co. key Management KMP's and their Joint Operations Total
Personnel .
relatives exist/Fellow
Associate
Compensation to key management personnel - 6.26 - - 6.26
- {4.62) - - {4.62})
- Mr. D C. Bagde - 4.39 - - 4.39
- {3.913 - - (3.91)
Short-term employee benefits (including bonus and value - 2.62 - - 2.62
of perquisites)
- {2.75) - - {2.75)
Post employment benefits - - - - -
Commmission - 0.80 - - 0.80
- {0.72) - - {0.72}
Expense recognized during the year on account of - 0.97 - - 0.97
Employee Stock Optlons granted (60,000 Share Options)
- (0.43) - - {0.43)
- Mr. Randeep Narang - 1.33 - - 1.33
Short-term employee benefits {including value of - 0.98 - - 0.98
perquisites}
Commission - 0.35 - - -
- Mir. Jeevan Lal Nagori - 0.54 - - 0.54
- {0.30) - - {0.30)
Short-term employee henefits {including value of - D.54 - - 0.54
perquisites)
- {0.30) - - {0.30}
- Mr. Prakasha s Gejjagondahalli - - - - -
- (0.41} - - [0.41)
Managerial Remunaration - - - - -
- {0.41) - - {0.41)
Sitting fees and commisston to directors - 0.56 - - 0.56
- {0.35) - - {0.35)
M. Srikant Chaturvedi # - 0.14 - - 0.14
- {0.12} - - {0.12}
Mr. N Sai Mohan - 0.14 - - 0.13
- {0.12) - - {0.12)
Mr. Seevantal Nagori - 0.07 - - 0.07
Ms, Ravita Punwani - 0.04 - - 0.04
Mr Sanjay Verma - 0.03 - - 0.03
Mr Deepak Bhojwani - 0,14 - - 0.14
- {0.12) - - {0.12)
Debtors Recovered / Adjusted - - - - -
. - - {10.32) {7.85} {18.17}
- Transrail Jyoti Structures- Bhutan - - - - -
- - - {7.85) {7.85)
- Gammeon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd. - - - - -
- - {10.32} - {10.32}
- Rallsys Engineering Pvt. Ltd, -TLL IV {REPL-TLLJV) - - - - -
- - - (11.01} {11.01)
Creditors Paid / Adjusted - - - R N
. N (0.46) - {0.46}
- Chaturvedi Sk & Fellows - - - - -
- - {0.43) - {0.43)
- Latindia - - - - -
- - {0.02) - [0.02)
Interest Payable 0.07 - - - 0.07
-Ajanma Holdings Private Limited 0.07 - - - 0.07
Interest Recoivable - - .
{1.87) - {1.87}
- Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd. - - -
(1.87) - (1.87)




Key Management

Entities where controls
[ significant influence by

Transactions Holding Co. KMP's and their Joint Operations Total
Personnel . N
relatives exist/Fellow
Associate
Advances Given 7.15 - 22.45 0.04 29.64
-Fransrall -FCEP JV- Nigeria - - - 0.04 0.04
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt, Ltd. - - 22.45 - 22,45
- Ajanma Holding Pvt. Ltd. 7.15 - - - 7.15
Advances received - - - - -
(0.35) . . [0.71) {1.06)
“Transrall -FCEP JV- Nigeria - - - - -
- - - {0.51) {0.51)
- GECPL-TLL 3V - - - - -
- - - {0.20) {0.20)
- Ajanma Holding Pvt, Ltd, - - - - -
{0.35} - - (0.35)
Advance adjusted/repaid 7.00 - - - 7.00
{0.35) - - (0.21} (0.56)
~Transrail -FCEP JV- Nigeria - - - - -
- - - (0.01} (0.01}
- GECPL-TLL 3V - - - - -
- - - {0.20) {0.20}
- Ajanma Holding Pt Ltd. 7.00 - - - 7.00
{0.35) - - - {0.35)
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment - - 4.98 - 4,98
- - [22.82) - [22.82)
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd. - - 4,98 - 4.98
- - {22.82) - (22.82)
Capital Payment - - 2.86 - 2,86
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Lid, - - 2.86 - 2.86
Security Deposit Given {Net} - - 13.76 - 13.76
- - {1.65) - {1.65)
- Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt, Lid. - - 13.76 - 13.76
- - {1.65) - {1.65)
Deposit taken - - - - -
- - - {25.00) {25.00)
- GECPL-TLLIV - - - - -
- - - {25.00) {25.00)
Loan Taken - - 0.26 - 0.26
- {0.05) - - {0.05)
- Adarsha Specialty Chemicals Pvt Lid. - - 0.25 - 0.26
- Mr. Omkarmurthy S Gejjagendanzhalli - - - - -
- {0.05) - - {0.05)
Loan Repaid / Adjusted - - - - -
. - (0.08} {2.91) - {2.99}
- Mr. Prakasha S Gejjagondahalli - - - - -
- (0.02} - - {0.02)
- Mr, Chandrashekar S Gejjagondanahalll - - - _ .
- {0.05} - - {0.05)
- Adarsha Multispeclality Hospital - - - - -
B - (1.17) - {117)
- Adarsha Specialty Chemicals Put ktd. - - - - -
- - (1.74) - {1.74)
Share Application money Received - - - - -
- {1.66} - - (1.66)
- Mr. Chandrashekar § Gejjagondanahallt - - - - -
- {0.55) - - {0.55}
- Mr. Omkarmurthy S Gejjagondanahalli - - - - -
- - {0.55)

- Mr. Prakasha 5 GeJjagondahalli

{0.55)




Entities where controls
] significant influence by
Key M
Transactions Holding Co. ey Management KMP's and their Joint Operations Total
Personnel .
relatives exist/Fellow
. Associate
Bank/ Corporate Guarantees Qutstanding - - - 207.32 207.32
: - - - {85.59} {85.59)
- Transrail Jyoti Structures- Bhutan - - - 167.62 107.62
- - - (58.03) (58.03}
- Transrail - SAE Consortium - Tanzania - - - 5.30 5.30
: - - - (5.40) (5.40)
- Transrail-SAE Consortiumn -Mozambigue - - - - -
. - - - {151} {1.51}
- Transrail - SAE Consortium - Benin - - - 6.42 6.42
" - - {20.30} {20.30)
~Transrail - CSPP Consortium - Thailand - - - 8.48 8.48
- Transralil Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD - - - - -
- - - {0.35}) {0.35)
- GECPL-TLL IV - - - 74.36 74.36
- REPL-TLLJV - - - 5.14 5.14
Rights issue of Equity shares 26.27 0.53 - - 26.80
-Ajantna Holdings Private Limited 26.27 - - - 26,27
- Mr. D. C. Bagde - 0.32 - - D.32
- Mr, Deepak Bhojwani - 0.08 - - 0.08
- Mr. N Sai Mohan - .04 - - 0.04
- Ms. Meha Chaturvedi - 0.08 - - 0.08
Provision for Doubtful Advances - - - 15.03 15.03
-Transrait -FCEP JV- Nigeria - - - 15.03 15.03
Advances Recelvable 0.15 - 22.45 29.60 52.20
-Transrail -FCEP JV- Nigeria - - - 11.38 11.38
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd. - - 22.45 - 22.45
“Transral! Jyoti Structures- Bhutan - - - 18.23 18.23
-Ajanma Holdings Private Limited 0.15 - - - 0.15
Receivables Qutstanding - - 54.81 65.33 120,14
- - {11.66) (4.34) {16.01)
- TLL-FCEP JV-Nigeria - - - 1.58 1.58
- GECPL-TLL-§V - - - 59,85 59.85
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. ttd. - - 54.81 - 54.81
- - {11.66) - {11.66)
- Railsys Engineering Pvt. Ltd. -TLL IV (REPL-TLL JV) - - - 3.90 3.80
- - - {4.34) {4.34)
Interest Raceivable - - . 1.87 | - 1.87
- - 11.87} - {187}
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd. - - 1.87 - 1.87
- - {1.87} - {1.87)
Security Deposit Given Outstanding - - 28.76 - 28.76
- - {15.00} - {15.00}
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd. - - 28.76 - 28.76
- - {15.00} - {15.00)
Payable for Capital Goods 3.97 - 3.97
{0.92) . {0.92)
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd. 3.97 - 3.97
(0.92} - {0.92)




Entities where controls
/ significant Influence by
Transactions Holding Co. Key Management KMP's and their Joint Operations Total
Personnel . .
relatives exist/Fellow
Associate i
Loan Payable - 0.66 1.67 - 2.33
- {0.66} (1.41) - (2.07)
-Mr. Prakasha S Gejjagondahalli - 0.20 - - 0.20
- {0.20} - - {0.20)
-Mr. Chandrashekar S Gejjagondanahalli - 0.45 - - 0.45
- {0.45) - - {0.45)
-Adarsha Multispeciality Hospital - - 0.14 - 0.14
- - {0.14) - (0.14)
-Adarsha Specialty Chemicals Pvt Lid, - - 1.54 - 1.54
- - {1.28} - (1.28)
Security Deposit Taken Qutstanding - - - 25.00 25.00
’ - - - (25.00} {25.00)
- GECPL-TLL-}V - - - 25.00 25.00
- - - (25.00) {25.00)
Capital Commitment - - - - -
- - {4.39) - {4.39}
-Gammon Engineers & Contractors Pvt. Ltd. - - - - -
- - {4.39) - {4.3%

*previous figures are in bracket{ }
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.
A This inciudes Commission paid /payable to M/fs Chaturvedi S.K & Fellows, in which Mr. Shrikant Chaturvedi is a partner.




Annexure -t

1 The following table summarises the information refating ta each of the subsidiaries that has NCI. The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before intra-
group eliminations { Refer Note 47)

Transrail Inkernational FZE Transrail Lighting Malaysia SDN BHD
Particulars | e -
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non-turrent assets - - - -
Current assets 0.78 1.56 0.04 0.00
Non-current liabilities - - - -
Current liabilities 4,25 3.97 0.15 0.07
Capital Contributions .36 0.36 002 0.02
Net assets 5.3% 5.90 0,21 0.09
Net assets atiributable to NG - - - B
Revenue : 0.09 1.47 - -
Profit for the year (1.11) 0.39 {0.04) [0.04)
Profit/{Loss) allocated to NCH - - - -
Other comprehensive income ‘ {0.01} - {0.00} -
0OC] allocated to #Cl - - - -
Cash flow from operating activities {0.04) {1.15} .00 {0.02}
Cash flaw from investing activities - - - -
Cash flow from financing activities - - - 0.02
Net increasef(decrease) in cashand cash equivalents {0.04} {1.15) 0.00 0.00
Particulars Transrail Structures America INC Transrail Lighting Nigeria Ltd
March 31, 2021 ‘March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 nMarch 31, 2020
Noa-current assets - - - -
Current assets 0.07 0.07 13.45 0.59
Non-current liabilities - - - -
Current liabilities ' 0.07 0.04 11.74 0.40
Capital Contributions 0.07 0.07 0.20 0.20
Net assets 021 0.18 25.38 1.18
Net assets attributable to NCI - - - -
Revenue - . - 0.26 -
Profit for the year - {0.02) {0.02) {0.10) 0.02
Profit/{Loss) allocated to NCI ) - - - -
Other comprehensive income 0.00 - 1.73 -
OCl allocated to NCI - - - -
Cash flow from operating activiiies {0.00} .67 {1.62) {0.02)
Cash flow from investing activities - - - -
Cash flow from financing activities - {0.68) - 0.04
Net increase/{decrease) in cashand cash eguivatents {0.00} 0,00} {1.52) 0.02
Particulars Adarsha Global Build Projects Private timited
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non-current assets - 6.63
Current assets - 25.92
Non-current liabilities - -
Current fiabilities - 23,28
Capital Contributions - 0.79
Net assets - 56.62
Met assets attributable to NCI - 16.93
Revenue - 46.45
Profit for the year - 336
Profit/{Loss) allocated to NC! - 0.0
Cther comprehensive income - {0.06)
0OCi allocated to NCI - {0.02)
Cash flow from operating activities - [4.87)
Cash flow from investing activities - (0.10)
Cash flow from financing activities 5.38
Net increase/{decrease) in cashand cash equivalents 0.41




e

3

91'Z0% %00°00T £6°8EY %00°00T 15'66 %00°00T 0895 %00°00T
00 %00 700 %000 00 %100 £0'0 %100 AT TIL1dTY,- AL P Sunys)| jeusued) - P nd SJeBulFul shspey | 8
- %00°0 - %0070 00°0 %000 000 %000 AFTIL-T623D] £
(86'0) %96°0- (850) %ZT0- (eL 0} %L Q- (Te'1} %0E0- BUSBIN -Al dD34- 1RJSUBRI] 9
uonesadQ ot
(eT1} %STT- (rEE) %940 (ree) %BGEE- - %000 £I1 37d spsloag pling [BGC(D BYSIERY S
(o0} %10°0- (sv0) %0T'C- L6°T %86'T vLT %1E°0 pr1 eUREIN BuRy2n jressuell] ¢
(zoro} %Z0'0- (zoo} %000 {zoo) %Z00- (a300] %T00 JN| BIIBLUY S3:NIONILS flesuRIL €
(vor0) %00~ (zro} %ECO- {vo0) %00 {L00) %100 Ha Nas eisAery Bupyl pesuert
(eL0) %SL0- (+1e} %07 T {og'0) %98°C~ {gz'g) %35°0- ' 374 |euoneUIRlY |leSsuRIE T
salepisgqns
ET'SOT %I6Z0T 166t %5201 857201 %EDE0T 00°TL5 %95°00T Pt Sunydiy jlessuedy| T
o) Buip[oH
u_,.,vo._m S1asse 18U Jjold S1955E Jou
unowy palepIosSu0? wunowy PIIEPHOSUCD Unouy pajepljosund Junouny pa1epiosuod signailied “ON'IS
30 9% SY JLES o %Sy 40 % 57
550] J0 Jp0.d U] sieys S319SSY 19N $50] 40 J40.0 L) BIBYS SID55Y I8N

0Z0T ‘TE YoIeW 38 5y

TZOT ‘T 42BN 18 5y

(gt 210N J2j0H) £T0Z PV sawuedwo) ay) wa 111 ||npayas tapun painbal se a.nso(Isi - | fnxsuuy




